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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The New York City Landmarks Preservation Commission was awarded a grant
far strestscape work 1o be performed within the Stone Street Historic District, @ New
York City designated historic district. in compliance with faderal. stale. and city
guidaiinas an assessment was mada of what archazological resources might have
- existzd as well as the likelihood of their survival, The study includad alt sidawalks and
stresibzds within the district and concluded tha! thara is archasologica! poatantial for
tha recouery of 17th Century-19th Century archzzological remains. Spacifically, there
is powzntial to recover building faundations and thair trenches for structuras built
. pefgra 5. Wiliam Street was cut through from Mill Lane to William Streel in the late
17th Century, bafore Mill Lane was widzned in the lale-sighteanth century, before
Stonz Streel and Hanover Sguare wers widznzd in'the early nineleanth cantury and’
vefors Caznties Allzy was raaligned in this century. Additionally, therz is the .
potznuz! for recovery of colonial through early ninatasath century sireet debris and
recovery of early sirestoeds and utilitizs in all pontions of the project area (Figure 1), -
Funhzr rasearch consisting of ar¢chaaological lasting and monitoring is recommeanded
in arzas wherg disturbance could noi ba documaniad below dapths of two faet,

ACKHOWLEDGEMENTS:

Tha inilial repori and reszarch were periormed by Dr, Daniel Pagano, of the .

Naw York City Landmarks Prasarvation Commiasion. Hz2 was assisted in his
rassarch by Ms. Gina Santucei also of tha LPC. This vaesion was submitted to the
Navr Yok Staie Office of Parks, Rearaabion and Historic Preservation in August of
1897 who respondsd that the submiited study was insomplatz. Al that time |,
Amznda Sutphin, LPC, was asked to revise the study. | was assisted in this efiort by
Cr. Josaph Brooks, LPC, who compited the Block 2nd Lot hislariés and by Mr.
Chris‘ophar.Ricciardi, an anthropalogical doctoral candidate at Syraguse University,
who campiled the Minutes fromr the Common Council 2nd Elevaled train research.
. The rzpart was then editad by tha Toliowing pacph Cv. Brooks, Razhzl Pressman,
LPC int=rn, and Prafessor H. Artnur Bankol of Brogklyn Cﬂllega

| assume all
raspansibility for the findings of this report.

ANTRODUCTION

tn 19985 the Naw York City Landmarks Preazrvgltion Commission veas awardad

n $270,000 grant from tha Msw York State D:'DE-!.ITH:'L of Transoartaiion, Intarmogs!
Susz:s Transportation Eficiancy Act (ISTEAY Transporiation Enhancemzant Program.
Thz grant was awarded to fund  sireslscaps improvamenis for the Ston2 Strest
His:zniz Disirict (LP-1838), an Historic araa in lowsr Manhattan [Figure 2). Tha
Alizaza for Covintown Naw Yark commissionzd tha arghitectural 2ad planning firm

=-ra-

zy2- Blinder Ballz LLP to dasign the stresiscaos improvamsants that zra to be
impizmantad {Figure 3).




Froposed actions include the feliowing sub-surface work: instaliation of a new
water main through Stone Strest, new paving for the sidewalks and sireetbed within
the Stone Streat Historic District, and all pre-enginaaring work that must be
performed for \hese actions. As the project grant was awardad by ISTEA to cover
actions within @ New Yark City designatad historic district these actions must be
reviewad by tha New York State Historic Office, the Advisory Council, and the New

York City Landmarks Preservation Commission. This report is being preparad in
camplianca with Saction 108 requiremants,

METHODOLOGY:

The purposea of this documeantary study is to identify and evaluata _
archazological resources that may be affectad by tha proposed work. The praoject
sht2 encompasses the streatoads and sidewals beds of the Stong Strest Historic
Distngl as weall a5 the sidawalk bads outsidz ing individually langmarked 0 & W
Seligman & Comgany building which includes. Stonz Street from Coanties Alley to
Hanaver Bguare, the western sidewalk of Hanover Squara betwazn S. William Street
and Pearl Streat, Mill Lana, the southarn sidavalk of S, Willlam Street betweaen the
outlz! of Coenties Alley and Hanover Squars, and the nofhern sidawalk of Pearl
Straet belwaen Coenties Alley and Hanovar Square.  The findings of this report are
compited from the following sources; the Stadt Huys Block Excavations {(Rothachild et
al 1387), the Naw York City Landmarks Freservalion Commission Designation Report
of thz Stone Streat Historie District (LP-1938), prepared by Dr. David Breinzt, as wall
as additional archival and map res2arch such as Minutes of the Cornmeon Council af
the City of Wew York and utitity installation maps. Tha chjaciive was 1o compite the
develgpmantal histories of the straets in quastion and documented disturbance,
Additionally, w& compilad a Block and Lot history for every lot in the project area, in
the evani that foundations of earliar structures are encountzred in tha sidawalks and
stregipzds. VWa then compared tnis research to tha findings of the Stadi Huys
excavations to relata thair excavation results with our documemiary findings.

Addivanally, wa hava heen visiting the pm;ecl locaion and tood photegraphs in
Febrozry 1857,

PREHISTORIC PERIOD

Tha Naw York State Musaum (NY3M) has indicated that twa Natvee Amearican
villags silas are recordad in the Archasological Sita Fila for lowier 1lanhatian. These
sites include NYSM #2059 and #4090, and ara drawin fram a report prepared by
CAnhur G, Parker {1822}, NYSM sita #4059 is ragorded by Bolion {1920:7€) as
"Warpoas” tha area above tha "Klock.” (tha Collzct pond). Bolion alsd records a site
at tha praseni day Corlaars hook. Known as "Rezhlaucs” or "Naghtogack,” Bolton
(1920:79) réiporis thal this Indian station is whars tha VJ*CriquE-:‘Eg=Er{ fl2d to for
shalis: I‘rom thz tlohawk and ware massacrsd (¢ 1843) by order of Direstor-General




. Rivar shoreling and then becamea known 25 T
1687.

of Naw Amsterdam Willem tGeft, Whila archazological literature from the early 20th
century documanis settierment narth of the projact site, Native Americans also

- occugied the squthern end of Manhattan, Remains of Native American occupatian

have been recoverad from the Stadt Huys site [Stahling et al, 1987: §) and at 60 Wall

© Stres! [Rulsch et al 1984: G-6) but wera not found in situ,

Alihough i is possibla that Native Amzrican artifacts may be encountered at
tha projact siie. dua to the extansivae davelopment activities of the last three hundrad

“years and {ne locaiion of project site directly aiong the pre- Contact shorelinz, it

seems unlikely that thase ariifacts would be {ound in situ, therefare the patential for
encountaring significant remains of Nalive Amarizan uccupatmn is low.

HISTORICAL PERIOD:

The streais in the projact area appear to have been laid out shoctly after the

Dutch West Indiz Company establishad th: saimamant of Nieuw (Naw) Arristerdam io

1624, Native American Indian paths. topographical features and an organic pattern
of grouih daiziminzd the physical development of the ssttlament (Landmarks
Preservation Commissian 1896:3). The sireais appaar to be within the sama
lotatien as the Duich colomial streets circa 1549, Peard Streat was originsliyithe East
ths Waal,” 2nd than Doclk Straat after
in 1794 tha sireat was renamad Pzaasiin honor of tha many shalls that littered
the valar's edga. S, William was first known as Siyck Steegh {(muddy lane) and tater
was 2so known as Mill Sireet, Hanover Square was known as “the slip" until 1695
whzn it was namad in honor of the Brtish roys! family (Landmarks Presacvation
Commission 1223; 3-5). Tha davalopmant historizs of each straz) witl be discussed

below by.strest but by studying maps va can s2s ganeacal trends of t 5-,5, colﬂma?
davelooment of the project area.

"Tha Map of tha Duteh Grants,” shows hat the project area had baen iolled as
of 1645 and whai is now Peard Streat was the shoceline of the East Rivar (Stokes Vol
N, Pigiz B7)(Figure ). This map additionzliy shows that the entirely of the project
areg wzs owmizd by faur ovners and tnat tha property of what s now £3-101 Peard
Strest nzluded a wihard, Howevar it is not possible from this map to knows what slood
on th232 propsiias. The next map we havs, "Tha Castsllo Plan of 1850, shows that
tha projact arsz had baen dzvelopag, zithousn the area bzbwezn Pearl and Stone
and Coenlizs Lliizy and Hanover Squarg inzleded open spaces (Slokes Vol | 1815 P
82 and Vol 1l gwvenagii{Figures § & 6). "A Pizn of ina City of New Yor<." attributed 1o °
Willie Brasiord from a survay by Jamas Lyns daling to 1730, shows that landiltling

chvity hed ootuired and nowy Pearl Streatwes a streat. Additionally, it shows that
the proizct arez was davelopad alkinough S Vitam Strest appsars la have open

LY




spaces within its block (Stokes 1815 Vol |: PL 26)(Figure 73, “A Plan of the City of
Naw York from 2n actual Survey Anno Dommi 1754 MOCCIV {the Maerschalck of
Duyckinck Plan).” shows tha projsct area as being daveloped with the exception that
no structures are shown as facing tha prasant day Mill Lane {(Stokes 1915 Vol I- P

‘34)(Figure 8). Aler this period far more detailed information is available 2nd will be

discussed in Appendix 2 aftar addrassing tha davalopmental histary of tha straels
thamsalvsas. :

STONE STREET: .

Stonz Street was originally called Hoogh (High) Street and led northward fram
the small sziifainent of New Amstardam to tha Leng island ferry at Dover Street. The
stragt regn alond a kow rdgs belwsan (ha Company Wiy (a swamp) and tha East Rivar
and 80 was aply namead (Wall 1937 270). Colonial records of Naw Amstardam from
1853 to 1674 indicate that rasid2nis of Stane Strest, on the poriion of Brawar's Streat
southwiest of tha project site, patitionad the Court Burgomastars and receivad a
dispositian for paving of the Strest in 1658 (Fernow 1897:309). It is not Known
wheihar tha araa within the project site was pavad at this tima although it appears
unlixgly. Funds to pay for the imorovement wers to be derived from tax assessmanis

bui there 15 no record of approval of such asszsamants for this partien of High Siraat
in 1633, :

In 704, ths Common Council ordéred that Steneg Street be newly paved and
hava 2 channal or autiar in the middlz of the sirext to faciitate deainage. The Council
ord=rad thai the work be complated within fizen months (MCC 1803:11, 285), Qrdars
tor the immediate pavement of Stone Street ware issued by the Council in 1750
(MCC 1305V, 302). . In 1784 th2 City Council agread to regrada Duke (Stone)
Street (MCC 1997: 1, 583). It do=s nat appazar nat this work was pararmad in the
17205 25 Ouke Sirzet was regradad and pavad in July 1791 (MCC 1917: |, 661). And
in 1794, a firg sw2pt through Duks {Stone) and Al Sireets.  lis not possible to -
assass how much damage was dong (MCC 1917 1, 877). In 1792, Stona Street,
Duxz Streei, and the litlz sireel from Duke Stresi to Hanavar Square yrers all
renamad Stone Strest (MCC 1917 11, 73}, The lzst action of the canlury by the
Council vas to widan Duke (Ston2) Streat. In 1794, after a series of patitions by
residanis of tha stre2i (MCC 121711 8) the Council agread that the stre=t should be
sxaanded and contrioutad 50 pounds (0 the ovezll prejact (MCC 191741 10].

Jann Broamz. 2 rasidant of 75 Stong Sirspl was grantaed parmission o

construst 2 vaeil in frant of his house in July of 1805 (MCC 13171V &7). Four ysars
latzr. John Graene was granied pacmission ta construct a vauit in front of 62 Stanz

Swasl ((ACC 181V 678). In both cases, th2 genilaman ware required to repair any
dzhzos 12 ths sidsweaiks that construclion cauzsy.

I the first ha!f of tha ninat2anih cantury many patitians viara mads {o the

-




Council to repave Stone Streat andg o clean its sewsrs. Althgugh not directly stated,
it appears that Stone Street was paved and repavad using a macadam mixture, This
- hard-packed earthan material would have required frequent maintenance.

Bewzen 1810 and 1811 a series of patitions were brought by local residents
to tne Council about whether or not to widan Stonz Strest. One palition asked thal
speciic houses be removad and that approximatsly 4 fz2t be added 1o the widih of
the sirest (MCC 1917:V1 78).  In 1811 approval was given to widan the sireet (MCC.
1917: Wl £83). The Council heard finat eslimatas to the cost of tha 1811 work in

January of 1815, The cost of the project was approximately $150,000.00 dollars
(MCC 1817111 129). :

The maintenance and widzning of the slrest were not the only problems that
residents on Stonz Strael faced. Issuzs of haalth 2nd hygianz seamad to plagua the
area throughout tha cenfury. The sewers in Stong Streel of the early 19th Century
warg wieoden roughs thal constanily needed raalzcemant dua to erosion. Aside from
water dastroying tha wood. the sawers would bacoma bocked and required servicing.

By the 1820s surmmons for residents with “privy nuisances” were being issued with
reguiarity.

Petitions for repairs to the wooden sewer drains 2nd ta repave parts of the
straet (beginning 10 front of Number 47) were pazsad during the fall of 1812 (MCC

1817: W 246 and 282). In 18285, a naw woodsen drainfzsawer was construsied ' l
throweh the entire [ength of Stone Streat (MCC 15170V 179, 204, 312 and 345). It . |
was rzaatred in Apri of 1829 (MCC 1917; XV 537 and 555).

In October of 1830 the Council authorized construction of sewars made of
brick and stone throvgh the enure lengtn of Stons Sireat to bagin (MCC 1817:XIX 28,
33 87 and 88). By the end of 18331 the monay o pay for construciion of sewsrs and
th= susssquent repaving were issuad (MOC 1917 XIX 234, 300, 362, and 388).

In Mareh of 1890 the Council. ordered that the streat and sidawalks should ba
rapaved with Belgium Block (Board of Alderman Minuies 1890: 153:603).

PELRL STREET:

A5 with many of the streeis in this area, Pez:l Sireal has also basn known by
savaral othar namas. Great Dack Street, Quesn Street and Thomas Sireet ware
synonymous namas for Peart Streat untit Maren ¢f 1784 when the names were
chanzzd to Pearlfidagazina Sirzst (MCC 191711 €5). 1t would appear that specific
szatinng of the ovarall lsngin of Pearl Strest warg subdwidad into thas2 different

“stre2:3". Although thare is no mantion in the Council reords of spaceiiic 2nging and
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addresses for tha bicck, ane gan surmise frﬂm the descriptions of the blocks of this
‘continuation’. From 1794 on, the Wwo street namas appear interchangeable in the

records until April 1811 when the Council decided to oficially r:all W all Pearl Street
. (MCE 1917 V1 574},

Pearl Slree had bean the East River Shoreling until the end of the 17th '
Century when tha area betwean Pear! Street and Water Sireat was landfillad (Figure
8. In 17th Century maps such as. "The map of Duich G:anis” (Figurs &) dated to

1645, one ¢an see that wharfs exisizd along Peari Street in our projact area. :
However, Pear Streat quickly evolved znd in the gighteanth and ninateenth centuries -
undenwent savzral-episodas of grading. paving, sewer and sidawalk :
constructionfmaintenance. [n 1785 and 1790 , Quaen (Fean) Sirest was regraded
{(MCC 13171 159) and the level was raised (MCC 1817:] 574). Tha 1780 reguiation of
Quzen Slrest that called for the 1eval o be raisad descrivad the sireat as being 380
faat lang (MCC 191721 574).  Additionally. during this fivz year paried patitions to

cl2zan and fix the sewers were haard on thraz occasions (MCC 1047:1 242, 400 and
453} |

Alse in 1790, Thomas Streel was regraded to "mezt” with the new izvels on
Queean (Fearl) Street {(MCC 1917:1 597). Peari Street and Great Dock Streat were
regraded again in 1791 (MCC 19171 687, 675, 635-587. 705, and 715). Great Dock
Stregt undarwent the most extensive restructuring whea the Council decided that it
must be stoped 1 foot every 10 feai descending (owards the “Waters” Strast (MCC
1917:1 683-687). Naw sidewalits weare tied into {he overali regulation proisct as well

(MCC 18171 715 and 765). By 1723 Thomas (Pearl} Sirast

rz2t was once agzin repaved
{MCC 1917:11 23 and 28}, Also curing this yaar 2 patition for 2 vault was rhade b\_.r
James Warnar of Queean Street and was grantad (MCC 1857:11 34).

In 1784, Paar Strest bacame the “efficial” nama of the stresl tha! included
Great Dack Streel, Hanover Streai. Thamas Strezl and Quaen Strezt (MOS 101720
68). Th2 sawers ware opened and inspected (MCC 1917.11 89) and newv drains were
addad from privaig nouses to the main sewer (1ACC 1917:1L 140 and 143). Peari

Streel received a new pavement and sidewalk along its entire {angth in 1795 (MCC
1917:1) 195 and 2104}.

Residents af Magazine {P=arl) Strest founnt nat o hava their black filled and
reqraded beivezn 1797 and 17eP (MOCC 1917k IFS. £12. 581). No explzination was
recordsd as to why the residenis did nol want this. but it would sppaar th2t singe
local residants had to pay for thass improvemarits, they must not have wanted tha
addad expsense. Howaver. babwzan 1801 ang 1809 1Az residants pelitioned the
Counci! to raiss the strast by 1 foot in haight. 20 repair and repave Mz gazine Strast

nineg dmes [(MCC 191711 51, 514, 361, MCC 19471V £, 283, RICC 1917V 21, 191,
229, 342 and 593).




A new vault. under Number 104 Pearl Streat was canstructed in April of 1806
(MCC 1817:1V 18C) and the sireet was repaved in August of 1808 (MCC 1917:V 338),
A pelition not to close, but o ¢lean out, a dirty well and pump at the intersection of -
Pearl Straal and Magazine Street was read and approvad (MGC 1917:V 598).

In April of 1811 the Commission decidad to raise Hagazine Street by 2 feet so
it could have an even transition into Paarl Sireet and officially changed ths name of
the entirely af thess streats 10 Paar] Street (MCC 1917:VI 574). By th2 end of the

yaar, and after a greatl fire, Pear! Streal would receive new sidewalks and be widenad
{MCC 1917:V1 633, 719 and 755). '

1n 1814 a paiition by tha residants of Pearl Sireet was mada as accarding to
lav: Pzarl Street should hava baan fifty faat wids but was net. The residants asked
th2 Council not only to rectify this situation bui to straighten the straat as well (MCC
1917, Vil 719 and MCC 1917V 84). It does not appaar that this wark was
undzrtakan, Several petitions to pave, and not to pave weare heard over the next nine
years (MCC 1917:VIIl 129, 373 338, MCC 1817:X 193 and MCC 1917:X1 598). It
wasn't unlil March of 1823 that the Commission dacided to extend the sewers along
tha lengih of Pear Streel ta Wilkam Street (MCC 1917:X11 345 and 358).

In 1825 th2 Council mandatad that work should ba undeartaken to widen the
intersection of Pearl Street and Coantias Alley {MCC 1917:XV 334, 484 and H388).
Gas lights were also placed along Pearl Streat (MCC 1917 X1V 239) and the'wood

sewars ware rapiacad with brick (MCC 1917.XY 232). New sewers were added

under thz iniarseclion of Pearl Straat and Cosntizs Alley in 1851 (Board of Aldarman
1851:42 355). ) -

Finally in 1865 and 1870 the sidawalks along the entire langth of Pearl Street,
and those on Harover Square and Coentias Alley were razed and raplaced with
Ralgian payemant stonas (Board of Aldarman 1835:98 225 and 1870:118 228).

In 1877-78 the New York Elavated Company erected the East Hide Third

Avenus Line along Paar! Strezt which siood until the 1940s (Landmarks Preservalion
Commission 1935 9). Sae "Elavaiad” szctian balow for discussion.

S WILLIAM STREET:

The slrest pounding the aortharn partisn of the projact area was known as Ml
Stres: until 1828 and was than ¢allad South Wilizm (MCC 1917:XV 252). The Castello
Plza o 1659 shows thal S, Wiliism Street did nat cut thigugh from Mill Lane to. William
Srraatiatha 180 Century, A et tima 2 houss wes located in what is now the
stresedin from of Lot 35 [Sloxes: 1916 Vo! 11 303} Figure 5). Mill Strest was surveyad
for rz57ading in 1783 (MCC 19173 §77) and itvizs dzterminad that the street should ba

-y
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sloped 2 inches per 10 feet and that @ new pavement should aiso be epptied (MCC
1917:1 630 and 664). The paving was replaced in 1818 by Jas. Pinkerlan and Gaorge
Charlion (MCC 1317:1X 21, 84 and 275).  |n 1825 a naw survey was undartaken and
the Council ordered naw paving to be laid (MCC 1917 XIV 799 and 780). Tha last
mantion of paving to occur on Soutin Witliamiil Sirest was in 1890 whan tha street

after yezrs of paiitioning by the residents, was pavedusing the “new olack tog” paviﬁg
{Board of Aldsrman Minutas 1880.1%7 727}

Asida from paving tha sirest undanwant waik for sewers. E!ieg.fl'ung tn 1817,
residents were complaining that tha sewers backed up whenever it rained and so
damandsd 2 new pump and sawar systam be instzlisd (MCC 1917:1X 253, 683 and
754} i 1B18 the Counsil dacdad that the rasidznls shauld pay for tha pump whila the
City wadld pay for th2 sawace and siraat répair (MCC 1917:X 163). Paiitions to cleanthe
S&wars ware mads ead greatadn 1820 (MCC 187XV 279). At Numbsrs 12 and 14
Mill Sir22t tha sasvars were Mol oMy backing up. but sgilling their conlents into the

vauls undemaaih the sidewalks  Bath residants paiition2d tha Counzil 1o ba allowad te
fix the pragrzm and it was granied (MCC 1917: X111 175). Finally in 182G alter repeatadly

repaificd ks wood sawers, brick drains ware plziad along the entice [2ngth of South
wiliizm Slreet (MCC 1917.XV 252, 293, 487, 4&3 and 557

MILL LANE:

_ LIl Lang was intially survayad in 1657 and was built shortly 2iter (Stokes
1916 wol Ii; 302). In 1754, residents patitionad the Cauncil to widen the sireet from
" four f224 1D tuanly feat. wide. Tha pstition further asked the Counci to purchase a
houss and Lot to accomplish this as they Jay in the desired streetbed. The Council
passed thiz mation {Stokes 1916 Vol U: 313). Thare is no further mention of this.
slrazt in tha Minutes of the Commman Cauacit, 2lthough this street may wall have
bazn sunsumad under entrias iaf Mill Streat {S. William Streel) and Stons Street,

COENTIES ALLEY:

Resolutions ware passed (o enlarge tha Alizy in Decembar ¢f 1830 (Board of
aldarmzn Minutes 1830:40 S33). <laan the sawars (Board of Aldermen Minuies

1851253 and 1380:293) and repzve at thz comns: of Pezrl Streat witn biadk

iacKk stane
(Boz'd of Aldarman Minutas 1832 .843). Sas thz "Elavaied” section balow for further
digeuzsan,

HANOVER SQUARE:

Hanover Square was kngweon as "the ship” undil 1595 vinen it was named in
hora ¢f Ihe British royal family tLandmarks Preszrvation Commission 1898: 3-3). in
{12 s2¢ly ningt=ani cantury it v. 55 280 addilionally refsrrad to as Exchangs
StrestMans and Maaovar Srest until the nams waz officially changsd to Hanovar




Square in May of 1830 (MCC 1917:XIX 19),

In April of 1804 residents requestad funds to have their street paved and new
sewers laid which was approved bul one cannot tzll if the work was approved (MCC
1917:01491, 575 and 5§31). [n May of 1816 a pe'ition was mada to widan the streat
behwaen the intarsecltions of Soutn William and Paarl Streel. This was approved later in
the manln and monies ware s ss5ids for the proest (MCC 1917Vl 517 and 228).
Anothar petilion for expansion weas presanted in May of 1824 {MCC 1517 X1 719-720)

“and was approved tha following yaar (MCC 1917 X1V 38). In Aprit of 1628 {ha streat -
was slraightened (MCC 1917 X1V 759).

Beabtwean 1823 1o 1828 this arga undenres! saveral construction projacts. 1

Decembear of 1825 ne Sloais Lans bacarna Exchangs Streat (MCC 1917: XV 111).

Foliowing the n2w nam=, 2 p2llion was raad Lo hzve tha sirest expandad 30 feat and
repaved {MCC 1917.XV 132 ang 181). From January to May of 1824 patitions ware

read and granted that extandad end repaved Exzhange Streat (MCC 191730V 229, 295,
334, 335, 399 and 403). .

WILLIAM STREET:

According to aczounts in the Commaon Coungil minutes, William Street, King
Gaorgs Slreet, and Smith Street ware other namss that referred ta what we call
Hanover Square. Hawsvar, it is difficult ta fallaw Inz Council Minutes as to exactly
where Witliam Strest was and if it was indead onz2 tha strest known 25 Hanover,
Baszd on the Miauies of the Common Counctl, v, aazers hat lhe William Strest and
Smith Street mentioned in their reporis are not tha same stresl 25 Hanover -
Square/Siraet. Haowever we can tall that in 1857 the portion of Willizm Street that is in
our projast area was surveyed  Thare had basn oo l2rge stons struciures that stood in
the tzd of tha new streat (Siokess 1315 Val Ik 324). In 1829, petitions were read and
approvad that allowad for ths rapaving of Williz~ Sirest between Stone Strest and Wall
Shrezt {MCC-1917:XVII 27, 44 135 and 228),

ARGHAEOLOGICAL FINDINGS OF THE STADT HUYS EXCAVATIONS:

Tha excavation of tha Siadi Huys Block (Sothschild et a! 1537) wias the first
largz szal2 urban archa=olagical projact parformad in MNevwr York Ciy, 1t was this
project’s finding that it is possivle to recover meaningful cultural matarial vithin an
urban context which is a cornarstong of urban zrcnazolegy in Naw York today. The
Stad: Huys Block excavation vras boundad by 3. William Skveet to the north, Broad
Sirest to the wesl. Pearl Sireat o tn2 south, 271 inzludad Cosntiss Allzy to the east,
This projact was direcily adjazz&ni 10 tha wastz:n p2rimater of our project site, Clearly,
their indings are rzlzvani to analyzing the archssoiagical potantial of our project




area.

Rothschild et al determinzd that Coantiss All2y was sensitive bacause it
appeaared o nal have bean greatly disturbed and vias adjacent to the Stadi Huys
which had baen uncovared in an earltsr excava:ion (Rothschild et al 1987 1).
thair report they acknowiladge that “utilities instatiztion may hava disturbag thes arez
bui thought that it was possibla that pockets of undisturbed araas existed within the
sireat (Rothschild &t al 1987 13-17). Additionaty. thzy had Ihe resulis of borings
dona within lots 10 and 17 {tha lots agdjasent to i1 €251}, Thase borings indicated
that the d2pth of fill was & and §'8" respactivaly {ioid 1987: 18). Rothschild et al
placed a tranch on tha scutharn end of Goantizs Allzy vhers they thought that they
rright encounter maiarial relaiad to the Stad! Huys. Howsvsr they determinad that no
turthar archazological excavation was necassaly in s arsa because undar a
“supariicial slratum of disturbead matanal, stratiz-aghy across Coenlizs Alley appeared
naturzl, with no evidanca of culiural.remains in 142 sail (Ibid 1987: 269 .~

Rotnaciild e al detamiinad thal Sione S7s&0 was highly sensitive bacause it
was daemad possible that eantiar remains of strugiures might be undsrnaath present
day slawaiks afiar Stone Strest was widenad it the 1830°'s (loid 1887 18). They did
not know tha locations of wlility nas and, as vaih Coantizs Allay, acknowladged that
this a2clivity may have disturbed ceriain saclions but fai: tha! thare might ba pocksts
of undisturbed areas within tha stresi. Again, g naarast Dorings thal thay discuss
{from lots 10 and 17} indicat= that tha first 8' to 88" respectively consists of il {lbid
1287- 18). Twa Wwanches wara sxcavatad withia Sans Sirest

gzl. Trench ons was dug
in wnzl ks now tng lobly of 85 Broad Strasl. Tranch bvo was placed along the
eastern end of Stone Strest. adjacant to Coentizs Alley. Trench one was dug

northisouth fram building lina to building line, They encountzred a Con Ed line In the
middla of the sireai at a dapih of 18" and abardonzd furinss wore there, A sidewalk

vault ran along the north side of the tranch and so erchazological excavalion was
done i e southern portion of Trench Ona. Tnay encountzrad a stonz {oundation
viall 20 a dapih of no more than fi;2 fzat that Iazy interpraisd to daiz prior o the
vidaning of Stone Straat in the 1830°s (Wall 1927 272 and Rothschild and Wall pers.
com. A297), Twd subsaquent tast culs ware §ans 10 sampiz any daposiis assaciated
viith this. Test cut BZ and CA viara "o test foundeson wails and stratifisd ground
surfazes dating from tha aarly 17in to eady 1970 canlurigs that weara found within {ibid
1987 2781 Trensh 1. In thess cuis they encounlsisd g sznes of buildars trenches,

fill depasia, and ground surfazas dating from (e g3y 170 to eardy 19ih canturies
(Bossch 1987 273, 283), _

Trench Twia was tan fast wida and was plezed roitn’south from building line to
building fine. Rothsshild et ai found that the insializton of viilites had graatly
disiuined the ¢2niar of the sires: and thai the issia'lation of a sidewalk vaultl along
thz rash o sids disturbad thas arez (Bossch 1837 287y Tvio t-"-?.t cuts vr2re placed
vithia i tranch onz, C6 ziong ihe sautharn vt gnd ths other, CC along the
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northern wall east of the ariginal trench (Rathschild et al 1987: excavation map).
Tha results from these excavations were quite different than for Trench One as
archazological depasits were encountered at a dapth of two feet. This deposit
consistad of tha sidewalk that dated prior ta the widening of Stone Streat in the
1830's (Boasch 1987: 287). This stratum was found betwean twe modarn tranchas,

‘one a wility tranch and oneg for 3 sidawalk vauli Beneath tha ¢. 1830's sidewalk lay

fill and surfacs layars dating from the fate ssvantaaath 1o early ninatzantn centuries.
The eadisst fayers. that of thz original Colonia! ground surface. reached a dapth of
six and haif faat 1o seven {221 balow the prasant grada {Ivid 1087: 287-306). '

Th2 Stadt Huys excavations additionally suggasted that the criginal contours of
tha ground suriace, bafore the developmant of Naw Amstardam, included a gentle
skops wiih the highast paint Iying in the southzastam cornar of thair project area. The
knoll slapad davn from this paint northward with 8 change in grade of 10% (a 4 ta &'
drop in 45 10 60 fz&t) and a sharpar dacline to lhe west with a chang2 in grade of
20% {a dachna of 5 faat in 20 f22i) (Boasch et al 1987: 322), This would parhaps
explain why thay did not encouniar any significant cultural remains in their trench
placed 2t Coantias Allay and Pear Streat as the potential strata would not have bean

very dazp, and therafore far more likely to have baen disturbad by utility work that
has fremendgusly increasad in this century.

Thz most important finding in relation o our project area is that sigaiiicant
matei2l cultura! remains could b found within Ihe streatbed. and could be found in
the midst ov Ltility trenches and sidawalk vauk trenchas at depths of only two faet, as
vias inz cese in Trench Two, Additionally, the {inding that the Colonial ground
surfzez was slop=d is relevant. although the 20% grade change appaars to run
wasirard from their site, wa do not know if a similar pattern may exist running
gashward 10 our prajeci arga or wihainzr the depins of Colonial levels remain at the
levels zngcounigred in this partion of tha sile throughout our ar2a. But, in any event,
w2 know that therz is the poteniial-for recovery of archasological remains at any

depth balow ivo f2et unless we can demonstraiz definite areas of disturbance and/for
ai modzarn fitl '

RECORD OF DISTURBANCE:

BORIMGS-

In tha 18305 the&v‘umrks. Public Adminisiration assambled boring data and
snareing information for the City of Naw York. The relavant information far our
prajzsi in within tae: "Rock Data Map. Borough of Manrhattan, Vol. 1. Shazat 1, John J.
Murssy, Autnos, 18377 Thsz foliawing borinas vwrera padermad vithin Block 29 Lot 18
{th= westarn mast lot of tha pro,act ared siivaisd zlong Cozntigs Allay betwasn Stone
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and Peari Streats), Borng numbers: 417, 418, £19,.420, and 421. Additionally,
borings were parfarmed in Block 29 Lat 36 which is oulside the Store Strest Histaric
Oistrict but is within the site boundaries of a dasignated New York Ciy individuat
landmark, tha J & W Saligman & Cornpany Building (now Banca Commerciale
ltailiana), boring numbars: 286, 287, 288, and 335 and 357. These borings indicate
that badrock is found at dapths of 32.7 to 36.9 faai betow grade and that the soil
generzlly associaizd with historez lavels was found to dapths of 10.2to 11.1 fzat
batow grade. Unfortunately the tater information anly comes from bofings #417-421
which arz lightly placed togethzr along Coentigs Siip. However for this location, from
his data, wa may bz able o say that historic tsvels did not extend below 11 feet,

UTILITIES

Puhlic VWatar:
Water mains.

Astess 1o waigr and the removal of wastz walar are chronic urban issues.
Tha first settlers in Naw Amsterdam usad privata vizlis which in 1658 were
suppismeantad by a public wall construcled. souih of Bowling Greasn. It remained the
gnly public wall until 1677, whan more public wzils were built including one in front of
73 Pazrl Streat just £ast of the project site:  In 1885, additional walls wera -
constryclad including ona ai the haad of Cozatizs Slip potentally within curc project
area. But 2¢cess 1o water, especially potable waler, remainad a chronic problem and
in tha beginning of the 19th Caalury New Yeork Cily commissionad tha Manhattan
Waler Company (o build a pubiic water works vrhich sarved parts of Manhattan until
tha Croton Watsr Acquaddct was built in 1842, (Church 1987 B:1- B-18)

The Warer Book 1820-1825 of the Manhatian Water Company is an account

book of alt commercial and residzntial customars who purthased walar satvige.

Therg ara many listinas for Stanea Streat indicaing that bored log pip2s ran along
Stanz Strest, ; ' . :

The Dapartmant of Environmantal Protzction Bureau of Watsr Supply and
Wasizwater Collaction map of the project area {map number DDA 123-07), Issued in
January of 1994, shows that 2 12" main was placad in Staneg Strestin 1908 and then
in 1913, high pressure 127 mzing ware placed within Stong Straat, Cozntizs Alley,
till Lans, Pearl Sirest. and S, Vidiam, 8 Wilizm additionally had 18" mains placed
throuzh & in 1933, William SiwrsstfHanover Sgozre had a high prassure 16" main in i
plagad in 1913 joining & 12" 1870 main,

Sewars:

Qisposing of viastéwais: nas been a vary big proolem for this ity since ils
incapion. [eav ordinances viaré passed by the Common Couns'lin tha 17th, 18N,
and i%n Cenunzs 2ddressing (he proper disposal of trash and of wastgyraler,
Dispssal was largaly [sht (o ind iduals who treated il in a variely of informal ways




such as through privies. cesspoals, and natural drainage ke the canal system of
Dutch Lower Manhattan. The first public sewar was placed within Broad Street in
1703 and individyuals were permitiad to build connections to it.  Aker thig canstruction
the City built a faw more sewers but did not hava an overali systerm. It do=s not
appgar that the project area had city built seviars at this early datz, but it {s possible
that individuals constructed thair own connections to seviers of to nztyral drainage.
The sawer difficulties of tha City wrare not addrassad until a few decadas of crisis
afizr tha inireduction of the Cratan Aguaduct ia thz 15ih Caentury. This introduction
encouragad increased use of water among an incraasing population which the hodge-

podge sewer system was woaiully inadequate tn handla. in fact, the sewar problem
was not coinplately addressed until recently. (Church 1987 B-1- B.18)

The Gfiice Record Plan of Sawars, Batary Park to Grand Street {n.d.} shows
sewars being prasent in Stonz Straat, S, William. and Paarl Strest but not in Mill
Lanz, William SiresVHanover Szuare, or Coznlizs Aliey (sizes of the sewers are not

.given). Tha map: Sewerage District No. 22BE. &lieration and improvemant to Outle!
Sewer in Bread Streat shows that as of 1902 ths “old sewar” in Stone Streat was to
ba "oroken up” 2nd replaced with 2 naw sewsar. This sawer may bz the ona referred
toin the' Minutes of the Commion Ceuncil, whanin 1831 S, Fargay was
commissioned 13 build a sewer and rapave Sonz Sireet from Broag Streat to William
Stresi (MCC 1917 XIX, 484).  Additionally, ths Minutes of the Common Council,

mentions that trick sewars were laid in Pead Swest and S. William Streats in 1828
{MCOC 1917 XV 282, 293, 487, £98, and 553).

- Con_Edison:

Depths oi precise lacations of the existing {and abandoned) mains and lines do
nat aspear 16 b2 known, This is the reason givan for the excavalion of fifty pre-
‘enginsering tast pits by Con Edison in the projsct srea. Additionaliy, Rathschild et al
in their excavalions located mzing at difizring lazations than Con Edisen had
indicaied they would be found (Rothschild et al 1887; 272).

. <=team Maiag: no kKnown mains in projact zrea. {Con Edison carreciad map
675/5:; 1).

Gas Mains, showvin as running aloang Pazsl. Stana, 5. William. and Hanover
Squera. They da noi run 2iong Coanties Allsy or MM Lana (Con Edison map n.d.).

Electric Lines: shown ag running throughout the project arez, with the
excepiian of Milt Lane {Con Edizan map n.d.).
Emgpire Ciiv Subraay Co, (NYNEX)Y:

-Shown as running throush all streats sxc=pt Ml Lane (ECS updatad 10420795,
Stonz Strazi to Hanovar Sg). '




Elevatad Train:

in 1877-78 the New York Elevatad Compzny erected the East Sida Third
Avenue Lin2 along Pearl Streei. whigh stood unbi! tha 1940s (Landmarks Preservation
Commission 1993 9). This train ling ran alang Psz1 Stres! wilh a station at Hanaver
Square (Cunningham 1935:12 and Rasves 1935 27 Addilionally thare was anothar

train lin2 2djasent 1o our projett eraa thal ran down Coantizs Alley making a2 “sharp’ and
dangeroas curve (Cunningham 159351 1) owands ths Whitzhall Strest Stalion {Reaves
1936:27}). Tha foundations of the East Side Third Avenue Line woulg have disturbad
potentizl archazalogical resourcas. Unfarlunataly vig wers unable to find any
spacifications for thase train Ins

5 and s0 insi22< maat draywy infarmation frorm otber
glayatzd trains. :

Ta2 foundations for the alavated trestlss o 277 Avanua, 39 Avenue and &

- Avenuz wera 2 similar in consiruction, With na sétondary sources describing

canstruciion technigues inlower Manhatian, we 2zzum2 thatl the foundation for the

aefevaiad track inthz grojsat eres would mos: liks'y resemala those of tha Avenue lines,
Foundzstions ware dugto a daxin of B {esiwiing : reuinferance of @ fezt. Concrele
sigbs, usualiy 7' thick and a crcurmdacende of B w22 Ihen poured into the hole. Two
large 5 o0t stones were plazed on top of the sizt. Tris .25 followed by cui, dressed
brick thzi wara camanted togsiner, thus compleiag tia faonng constructions. Largs
pins and serews waould then be placed into the £ying mixture 1o give it support and to
be usss &5 2 mazns for ailecning tha stesl sungor bsams (Read 1978:75).

In edditian Io tnis inforanstion, photagraphs dzating o lne 1%30s show tha-north
sida of Paar! Streat in our projact area, From lnzsz photogrephs, we can see thai the
footings of tha Elzvalsd &re shown 25 baing wilh & the sidawalk immadiataly adjacer:: to
Ih2 sirzzi bahind tha curbling | VWe can ses inai sundations existed in front of the
following buildinas tawards ha:rwastar boundenss:

33 72, 81, 89, 93 and €% Pearl
Strez's. {Laj:rn:-rm Presarvaion Commission £70vvas)

CONCLUSION:

The Stone Street Histor Qistriet vras ths centar of the colonial city both
'phw"a ly and sociaily. Diraciy 1o the west of ins projact area in the 171 Century
staod ing Stadi Huys, the Duizh lown hall and he Tirst municipal structure in New

Yom £nd than, Lovalace Tevarn. the municips. soilding of tha colonial English
ETHET

In thz colanial era thz district was kns.un as thz "English Quariar " and was
homs ta many socially praominsni famitizs of Néw York vith namas such as.
Livinasian, Bayard, D2 Paysiar iLandmarks Prassvation Commission 1€30: 3).
Adcizaally, thers ware many prominent Javash '=—nlr=5 raswding in the district with
namss such 25 Levy. Szixas and Judah, On 2 V0Mhiam Sirest stoad the oldest




synagogua i Naw York, that of the congregation of Shearith 1srast which began
meeting ciandestinely in 1654 and then buili a public structure in 1695 (g 1996 5).
The nzighborhood evolvad from this socially exclusive neighborhasd in the eighieenth
century to become an impartant mercanlile centzr in the ninetaenth century. 1tis ..
essential that we fully invastigaie this historically important arza archaeologically so
that we may have a beitar understanding of inz development of Naw York City.

Thara iz madium {0 high poiential far the recovery of four types of
archazological daia in tha sidzwalks and strestbeds of the praject area that wili help
us Lo builld a batier undarstanding of the past 1. that of the foundations and
foundation trenchas for buildings that ware buili along street edges befare streat
widaning and realigning, 2. tha: of stra=t debris, 3. that of the straats and sidewalks
themsslves. and <. that of garly atility lines.

The potzntial foundatizns and foundation enchas of pre- 1754 structures on
Ml Lanz, pre-1811 structures alang Stone Strest and pre-1825 structures along
Hanoved Square as well as within Coanties Allay Plaza realigned in the 1980s, might
patmi us to sludy building technigues employad in thase early time periogds as well
as provids 2o artifact assemblage databls to the erection of the struciure. This
assamdiage may inform us of the habits of tha consbruction craw, tha dispasal habits
of [n2al rasidanis and visilors vo iy hava ussd the open trench as a piace to

disposz of garbage as well as provida environmental information that dates ta-
constouciion of tha foundation. : N

The sacond type of archazological dala that ws may encountar are streesl
debris depasiis. Unlil very recenlly, the skreets of New York ware covered in garbags
and filin a5, naither the seway systam nor garbace collegtion were consistant until this
century. There is 3 lang history of governmental attempts to d=al with these lssues
a5 can b2 sean in the many ordinances passed. Thasza ardinances additanally allow
us & vizny 35 o vhat typas of aroage hittared the sireets and s depesitian, For
examme. in 1857 burghers and inhabitants of the colony were directad not to disposs
of "rubbish, filth. ashas ayster shalls, dead animals and soch like things” in public
streats (Fernow 1887, v.1:31). .And in 1658, an ¢rdinance was passed stating that
burghsrs and inhabitants most not, "build their privies evan with the ground with an
opsning towards the sireal. so ibat hogs may consume thz filth and waiow in it
cre2ting a great stanch and. . making thz strests foul and unfit for us2" (Fernow
1857, v.1738) I addinonally cequwired every hog awnar 1y put 2 ring in tn= hog's nosa
o prevsat the animals from rocung in th2 sireai. From [hese ordinancas we gan sé2
tha: sirest garbe2 was a chroc prablem, thai dead animals among otnar garbags
vizrs Brown into he sireats. and that tha garbaje was looiad by animals such as
hogs. These psliarnz 2l us thal nare is poiential to recovar colonial garbagsa in ths
siragiosds archzealagically, bl (hal it most likely would have baen disturbed shorliy
aiar Lwas dzpasied by animzis as wall as vehicles.




The third type of resource we may encounter is that of the construction of the
streats themselves. The building and maintanance of roads was hardiy a trivial matier
as tha ease of transportation, especially in such a ceniral lacation. afzcts the health
of the city. In Phitadelphia. archaeologists have documented changes in paving
methods both archazologically and through dotumentary rasearch. and specuiated
the efizcl that would have had on tha transporiaiion of Philadalphia {Parrington
1983). From studying the Minures of the Commen Councif wa tan sa2 that
mainaining the roads was & chionic issug and was thought to be addressad
numerous imes. Wa can telf vihat methods wara mandatad to be used, and then
compare this with the archazolegical record. In this way we may i2arn 2 great deal

mor2 gbout the state of tha roads and about tha realities of colonial and nineteenty
- centary transportation and administration.

Ths final tesources we may encounier are early utility lines. Conveniences
such as running waier and elsciricity ara recant phanomana and their instaliation was
mitially experimantal.  Water pipes were instalizd in the colenial era and were made
of wood. ltis possibfe that sama2 such abandanad lings may still exist under the
streats in our area. Additional uiilitias such as gas, electric, and seviers ware
installad in the ninataznth century and used methods and techniquss that may no
longz: b2 inuss. This is what Parrington et a! (1983) encounterad in Pniladelphia, If
wa cen s82 this in Naw York w2 can lzarn about this important quatity of {ife isdue,

RECOMMENDATIONS:
SENSITIVITY BY STREET:

Stong Street;

Thara is sgnsitivity along Stonz Street for

all four ty'bes of archasalogical
denasits,

Tha paizntial foundaiions and foundaiion trenches would most likely be
locaisd undsr the present day sidawalks and could be locaied as shallowly as 2 feet
benszin the suriace to daping of 7 fzat, the dapln that Rothschild et ai (1287)
encounizrad the colomal ground lzvel. Recovery of thase stratifiad daposils would be
of immense archazoclogical valuz. [t se2ms unlikely that potential foundations and
foungziion trenchas would b2 sngountered at areas whare sidewalk vaulis hava bean
instelizd. Vaull localions inclusde: 45, 53, 55, and 57 Stone Sireel as well as portions
of tha sidewalk in froni of 59, 73, 72, 58. and 6J-G5 Stone Sirestl,

Thare i3 potential for recovary of streat dabris deposits from the colonial era
through the ninstzenin century. such as Rothschild & al {1807) eacountezred at
dagins of tirsa fz2t belweaen & ulility trench and sidewalk vaull treach direchly
adjzzan! to the west of our projest area in ths bad of Stone Strezt. It appears
unlixsty that poisatia! slrest daposits would ramain in the center of tha straet as there

rz €0 many inzs that cunin thal [oeation, hawsver theee is a poassinilily given hat
wility renches do nat appeaar 10 ba systamaucaly instalizd. Allowing room for
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additional depth as the colonial grade was not fiat, it is moast likely that these
deposits would exist al dapths greater than two feet (the approximate depth of the
madern strest bed) and would not extend to d2pths banzath ten feet as Rothachild et
al encountered Colonial dapasits at six and a half I seven feel below present grada

- There is potential for the recovery of garly slieet bads and of early utilitias,
including woodan waiar piges, {hat may halp 10 batier inform our knovdadge of these
essentigl cily services. Thass rasources may be encounterad dicecly undar the

modarnm streatbad. at d2pths balow 2 feet below prasent grade, although it is rmore
lixely that they would be found at deeper lavals,

Mill Lana:

There is high patantial for tha recovery of early loundations in the streatbad of
kit Lang, This stregt was widenead in 1754 from 2 width of four feat to fwantly feet
(Stokes 1916 Vol II: 311). Additionally ai the time of this action the Comman Coungil
purchasad a house and {ot that iay on the dasirad new street bed. Ther2 is potential
for iha recovery of remnamts of this structure. Additionally, there is high potential for
recovary of strest dabris and o remains of early stregtbeds at depths greater than 2
the approximate dapih of the modarn strzalbad, Mk Lane appears to have only on2
ulility trench running throwgh i that of a 12" watarmain installed in 1913 {map
numbar DDM 123-07 issuad 111984}, This suggzsts that twentieth century
disturbance has been vary limitad . There may ba i2vals of fill protecting the two
potential resources, as although this streat deas noi agpear to have been disturbed

_w'.xh utility trencias, it is 2t ths same appmxlm g gr3d= a3 tha adjar*ent straats that
do include uliliti2s.

Q:aenﬁels Alley:

The present area callad Coanties Allay rung along the wastern édgs of Lot 22,
Untl the development of 85 Broad Streat this area had baan the location of Lot 19. U
is tharafore madsrately to highly sensitive for tha recovery of feundaitions, foundation
trenchas, and additionally of priviss and cistarns. {Sea Appendix 2 for full discussion
of the history of this oty There may be the poizniial for recovery of archaeaolggical

resourcas, as Rothschild et &t (1987) recoverad a great dzal of matarial. including
foundations for Lovslacs Tavern, under similas cirgunstancas.

A partion of the project ar2a falls outsidz the perimaiers of lol 19 &nd includes
the around of the original Cozntizs Alley. Fothschild et 2l placed a trench an the
southzrn end of Coantizs Alizy along Paarl Strast, directy adjacant to our area, and
dziziminzd that no further arcnzsdiogical axcayation was necessary in {his area
bacause under a su;:--rfu::al siratum of disturbsd matznal, stratigraphy acsross
Cazntizs Alisy appsarad naiusal., with no evidence of cultural remains in tha sail
{Rothschild gt al 1987 269) 7 Thasa is 0 reasan ta reiest this arsz,
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Pearl Straet:

There is medium patential for the recovery of three types of resources in
poctions of Paarl Street, that of streal detiris, ezny wtiltizs, and early streetbeds.
" These daposits may exist at depins of bwo to ssven fzed as, Rothschild et al (1987)

encounizred such deposits at thzsa dapihs to thz west dicectly adiacent to our project

area. |1 appears unlikely thai potantial sreat 25 3sils viouid remain in the center of
the strzzi as thare are 50 many lings that run tarcugh thare, but it is possible since

the wlifity trenches do not appear 1o be systemalically installed,

Coastruciion of the vaulls would have disturdbad any potential remains in the
sidawa’s in fran’ of 93-99 Paad Sweet. Additionzly, construction of the Elavated
Train vizuld Rave disturbed po=abal deposits in carunna ¢f the sidawalk as the
Hfoundatians ware lypically cug o depihs of 8 viis & cireumfarence of §° (Read 1978
758). From old photographs w2 can seg that sush foundalions were placed in the
sidewalr diractly adjacent to tha straat in front of inz foltowing buildings on the
western sid2: 79. 81, and 89 Pzarl Strezt {Landmarks Praservation Commission

Archives) W is unlikely that psiential resources wauld be encountered ai those
logations.

South William Street:

Tnere is medium poteniial sor the racovery of 2l fpur types of resources in
poartions of Soauth Witiam Sirzst, thet oft early byondelians and foundation teenches,
street dabris, early utilittes, and early streetbeds. Thess deposits may éxist al depths
of threz faet to seven feet as, Rothschild et al {1937} encountered such deposits at
thase ¢zptivs diractly adjazani o tha west of our projact area. It appaars uniikely that
potentiz’ streel deposits would ramain in the canzr of the sireal gs thare are g0
many 228 that ren through thesa, bul it is possitis given that ulility trenchas do not
anpear 1 be systamatically installad.

Hanover SquareiWilllam Street:

Tnare ia sensitivity alona Hanovar Squersiiilliam Streel for all {our bypes of
archzssiogica! daposits. Poteniia! foundations and foundation trenchas might exist as
Manovz Sguare was widenzs v 1816 again i1 1825 2nd then straightenad in 1828
(FMCC 1917V 517, 528 ang Xiv 35, 755). Tnzs2 potantal resources would most
likely Lz locatad in the pressni day sidewalks 273 covid b2 located as shallowly as 2
feet beazath the surface to daatihns of 7 fzel whzra Rotnschild et al (1987)
encoun'ered the colonial ground laval. It seams ualikzly that polantial foundatians and
faundzisn trenches would b3 encounizgrad in z-z2s vhare sidewalk vaults have besn
inatallzd and/or disturpad for s2wer installation. Thase locations includa the sidawalk

adjaczs: o Blogk 29 Lot 33 o the southaen hzl of this block,

1§
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There is potential for recovery of streét debris depasits from the colonial era
through the nineteanth century as Rothschild et af (1987 encountered daposits at
dapths of three fzet batwesn a utility trench and sidewalk vault trench directly
adjacant to the west of our projact arez in the bed of Stone Slreet. 1t appears
unlikgly that poizntial streat dzposits vould remain in the center of the streat as thers
are 53 many lings thal run through there, but it is gessivle given that utility trenches
do no. appaar to be systamaiically instaliad. And it is most tikely that thase depozits
would exist at dapths greater than two feel (th2 approximate depth of the modearn
slrzai bed) and would not exisnd to dapths bénaath ten feet as Rothschild et al

encountared Colomal deposits at six and a half to seven faet below prasent grade
and then allowing addition space as tha colonial gragda was not fiat,

SUMMARY:

Portions of the project araa are sensitive far all four types of archaszological
rasaurces al depths below two fasl the sidewats of Stone Streat, Wilkam Street, S
Williarn -Stre2t between Ml Lana and William Street, Hangver Square, and the
Coentizs Alley Plaza {formar 12t 18). Additionally, Mill Lane is saensitive for tha
racovary of early foundations angd foundation trenches, tha strazthads thamselves
and siraat debris of all perinds  In these areas great care should be taken if
subsuriace work is 10 be perfermad at dapths balow two feet. in these arzas:a plan
of archazalogical excavation and intensive monitaring is réacommended as ihere is
pataniial to recavar stratifizd Colonial and early 19th Century deposits which would

ha ol creat archasological valus. Thare ara alsa portions of the projest area that are

sansiiiva for recovery of strest debris, the early sireatbads themselves, and of early
utilitizs. We recommand that should sub-surfaca work be performed in these areas,
grchzsolegical monitoring shou'd be dona tg insur2 that if archazological deposits are
encasmerad they will ba sludizd. This includas: the Stons Sirest strezthed, and the

sidavias of South William Streel irom th2 vr2siarn perimeter of the projact area to
Kl Lans and Peart Sireat,
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FIGURE 8

THE EVOLUTION OF THE MANHATTAN SHORELINE

Landfill Composite From 1608 - 1900

Producad by: Cily of New York
Landmarks Prasorvation Cormmission
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APPENDIX 11

HISTORY OF THE BLOCK AND LOTS: STONE STREET HISTORIC DISTRICT
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:L APPENDIX IT
HISTORY CI‘F THE BLOCK AND LOTS: STONE STREET HISTORIC DISTRICT

i (NTRODUCTION

The tniiuwm,, 15 essentially a -:hrumiugm:ll list of owners and occupants of the specific lats within
the Stone S:r:tt Historic District. Although the lots ar2 oo three straess, two lanss and a piaza, they all
have the same tax bloek number, nanely, Tax Block 29, The lots are here arranged in descending
tumerical né-::ler. The acea was lotted arcund the wern of the 19th cencury, 2nd address numbers were
glven: these have not basically changed. Mill Lane {vernacularly, sometimes cailed Jews Alley because
af the early Jewish comniunity herey was widened first in 17330 South Willtam was extendad 10 William
Street after [ 796 and by 1850 {perhaps in 1826} Afier the December 1835 fire, which dévastated the
mxisting }17thand 18t cenmury buildings here. Stone Sireet was widened. and it is possible that Pear] and
Souch Willizeh Streats were widened as well, Foundations of the 2arlier buildings may therefore liz under
thie street and sidewalk ground levels. The names and businesses of occupants and owners may provide
clues 1 the %denuﬁcanc-n of any possible findings made during imerovemsans. '

The {information (nsluded herein was mainly culled from the New York City Landmarks
Preservation Commission (LPC) Eesearcly Depactrnent fles for Stona Street. This detailed dara was
gathered mainly by the dilisent effart of Dr, David M. Breiner, an LPC Research Deptariment staff
member, who prepared the LPC Stone Streer Historic Disrict Designation Report. under the guidance
of 1ha Direceor of Research, Macjoriz Pearson. D, Breiner was assisted by ofhier stft members and by
earlizr research by the LPC Surver Department and the New York Landmarks Consecvancy (the larter
being 2 Prwfme Sector orgamzation). In the Designation Repart, Dr. Breiner includad information mainly
refevant 1o th-: extant above-ground buildings. so the following entries add o the daa in the Dasignation
Report, :pemﬁc daies and all recorded owners/ pecupants, FThe detached hu1idlng a1 Tax Block 29/ Lot
36, bounded by William, South William. Mill Lane and Stene Streets is not part of the Stone Straet
Historie District fortmalty. but its facades are contiguous to the District, This building is an individually
designared New York City Landmark (LP-1943) and is rizled the § & W Seligmon & Company Building.
The mfnrnuuun for the blackflet history was obtained from the Research Department files and the
Desmn.attnn- Repoct, both wers compiled by Jay Shockley, Landmarks Preservationist. Sraff of the
Research Daparument, under Director Marjorie Pearson.

Of the literary sources, that which provides nwst defail for the 17th and 18th centuries was LN,
Fhelps Stokiss. The feonpgrapi of Meanhanan, 1433-1909, published 1915-1928, volwuines 1 and 1L In
particular is hits inclusion of illustrations of historical maps and the bird's-eyve view of lower Manbattan
produced in 1560, The bird's-eye view is often called The Castella Plan, since rhe original was in the
Villa Casialle, Florence, [taly, ar tha time Siokes was doing his research (c1900). Siokes also includes
an early 19h century chact. or map. showing Duich Grants of the 16005, These two documents -- the
Casiello Plan and the Dueh Graats Map -- help to indicare positions of 17th centory buildings, and their
gwners. The facades were built out 0 (he curblines of the existing streets, and  at 1¢ast their foundarions
ware sione. ‘Two L&th century maps which Siokes illystrates. that ¢ 1730, pechaps by William Bradford,
and an nnl:mim'mus map of (795 provide some dara of the davelopment of the area; and it seems that aay
18ch cenry buildings which replaced L7t czmlury housas were built atop the 17y cencury foundations,
Dewiled Mew York Ciey Building Depactmant cecords weve nat kept until the post Cinl War era,
however. City Directories and Convevance Records pravide somne information from che eaely 19h
cenqury, The buildinas were basically residenrial in the 16005, mixed residential! commercial in the 1760s
and early 18005, and alnyost satirely connmercial afier the December [835 fire. unti] today,

N.B. Eull bibliveraphies can be found in the twa LPC Historic Designation Reports for the Stone Street
Histacic District {Dr. David Brantery and e Seligman Building (Jay Shockley).

Prepared by Joseph €. Brouks, Ph.D.. Lundawrks Preservationisi, KYC Landmarks Presgcvation
Comenission, September. 1997,
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BLOCK/ LOT HISTDRIES. ARRANGED NUMERICALLY BY LOT (ALL ARE BLOCEK NO. 29)

PEARL / STONE STREET QUADRANT .

LOT 19 _
ivo. 75 Pear] Steeet afkfa 42 Stane Street. Tax dMap Block/Lot: 29/19 in part

Vacant land since 1972, a pedestrian plaza since 1981, Located at the southeast corner of the historic

district. this property 15 contiguous 1o the paved plaza on which the mcr:lern qffice buitding, Mo, 85 Broad
Strewt {c:uts.ld: tie boundaries of the distrizo, stands,

Hisiary of e sive

16003

This parcet overlaps the Coenties Alley of the 16005 and parl of the land pramted in 1643 o Thamas
Willett, & soldier in the West India Company's sérvice. On the southeast corner of this sitz, Charlas
Bridges (a/kfa Carel van Brugge). whe married Willet's widow, owned a house which he sold before
1960 to his brother-in-law G2ocge Woolsey (afkfa Joris Wolsey). a native of England, who warked in.
MNaw. Amsierdam 25 an agent of 2 successiul New England mierchant, and in 1656 becamie a licensed

innkeeper. 1t is nol impossible tha fnundaimns of Bridges™ haase may lay uader the ground level at 75
Pearl Sireet.

L7005

The 1730 Map shows brick row houses were here; the 1796 Map shaws that the entire block was buil
up.

18003

[n 1811, No. 75 Paarl Steeer was the dwalling of painter [sase Plum, and No.42 Stone Sireet was &
boacding house run by Johr Thonas, 2 ecoper whose business was located on Coenties Stip. Al the time
of the 1335 fire, No. 42 Stone Sureet was owned by Jane Ayerigg. wife of 2 New Jerszy physician, and
occupied by coopers 1. & H. Scoir and ¢rockery merchants Yeghie & Lippincot. also ¢1835 No. 75
Peatl Street was occupisd by Benjamin Seabury’™s crockery business and owned by Baltlmcrrc acorncy
George W, Williamson,

After thwe 1833 fire, by 1830, M. Ayerioe Dad sraciad ar 42 Sione St 2 stors and lafi building
that housed the firm of Lard & Company. In 1831.32 otcupants at 42 Stone included WAL Isar, Leo
Detbanco, and I.ivl. Bogent, all coramercial merchants; and Benjamin Clacke, ymporter; and R.A. Alcock,
agamt. Aycrige's fammily retained ownpership for over fifty years. Mo. 75 Pear] Sir¢2t, which remained
in‘tha gwnership of the Williamson family for m least séventy-five years, also contained a commersial

buitding, ootupied it 1831 by merchants Theodore Perry & Company and Thallon & Tait, and later by
the drug business of Reginald G. Barclay.

19003 :

The 1h-Cenury five-story buildings were demolished e 1929 for a through the block six-story office
and storage building designed by New Rochelte arohitect Harry Tanenbaum [Dem 203-1929, NB 504-
1829] and budlt for the M. & 7. Guitag Corp, 1t wis demalished in 1971-72 by Rotanmio Associates {DP
4-1972), Goldman, Sachs & Co. purchasad his site in 1981 and conumissioned rhe padestrian plaza in

conjunctien with tie construction of the building at 83 Broad Street. Bronze properiy-line plagues, sel
imo the pavemant, indicate the sguihern exient of the lot,

N

LPC. Stone Sireer Hisroric District Report {LP-1938) (New Yock: Ciuy of New York. 1999), prepared
by David M. Breiner -- pages 29-30

Landmarks Preservation Commission. Research Files {Stone Street Blocks Lot Bles. prepared
by David M. Breiner, ef ah '

1




LOT 22 .
Mo, 77 Pearl Street a/%/2 44 Stone Street
Tax dMap Block/Lat: 29722

Daxe: 932,83 [Al 1[!53--1931]. Architect: Frank P. Farinalla. 2 1/2 stlur}', brick. commereial building;
foundatiens from the building built in the 1830s..

History of ihe sire

1600s .

The lot 15 part of the parcel gramed in 1645 to Thomas Willent, 2 soldier in the West India Company's
sarvice. Two years fater his widow. Sarah Cornell, maccied Charles Bridges (a/k/a Carel van Brigpe),
a native of Cantecbury, England, and public official in the West Indies, who had accompanied Pieier
Swayvesans to few Aumsterdam, and evenmnlly held several responsible posts in the provinee and activaly
developad owns in the visinity of New Amsierdan, By (660 the lot comained 1 Aonse {No. 77 Pearl So).
17005

Thea lot ramained in the Willew family uneil 1783, The 1730 Map shows brick row houses were here; the
1796 Map shows that the enatire block was built up.
1300s

During the #arly ninatéenth century, the lot contained two boarding hﬂuses Residents included carpentst
William Lnsley and 2 sawyer named Dickensoi. [ 1314 the lot was sold to marchant, ). Greenfield, by
its owner, John Jacob Astor {1763-1318). Astor was the German-born fur trader who came o monopolize
his field and pioneered tha China trade; ar his daath he was the couniry™s wealthiast man due Iargely
his New York Cily real estate investmens. At the vime of the 1835 fice, merchant John V. Gmenﬁcld
occupied the through-the-block struciuce on this lot.

- Following the fire, the Greznficld family atso purchased Nos. 79 and 81 Pearl Street and erected
three stare and Ir::rﬁ buitdings on the three lots {(Lotg 22,2324, Mo, 77 Pearl Sirzet was owned fram
1843 unil his death in 1875 by Ebanzer Cauldwell (born 1791) and occupied by his ceockery concern.
A native of Birmingham, England, and director of the Tradesmen's Bank, Cauldwell was at the time of
his death amwng the most influential nterchants in his Geld.

19005
In response to an upsafe bullding vielation issued in 1952, Stoneview Realty Corp., a wholesale drug
comgpany, hired architect Frank P. Farinélla to remove the upper stories of the Graek Revival five-story

stschare [All 1163-1982): che building was renavated and largely rebuilt, although I:hi: foundarions muost
still date to the 1830s,

LPC Stane Strcer Historie Districr Repore (LP-1938) (New York: Clty of MNew York, 1996} prepared by
David b, Breiner -- pages 30-34

Landmarks Preservation Conunission. Fessarch Files (Stone Steeet Blacks Lot filas, preparad
by David M. Breiner, or af)

Ebenszer Cauldwell obiwary, N¥T, June 20, 18735, p. 7.
Astar, John Jacoh, Who Wers Whe in America. Hisc Yol (19683}, 30

l-11




LOT 23 _
o 79 Peacl Street afk/a 46 -Stone Streeet
Tax Map Block/Lot: 2913

Buile c1836 possibly by John V. Greenﬁﬁld mrerehant; :lrr:hltec: unknown. 4 story with basement, brick,
store and Joft building.

History of the site
16Q0s
This lot was part of the parcel granied in 1645 w Thomas Willer, a soldier in the West India C::-mpnm 5

service, and it did not conain any stnuceres in 1660,

1Hi0s

Thz lot remained ia the Willawe family uni! 1735.The 1730 Map shows brick row houses were here: the

1796 Map shows that the encire block was boilt up.

18005

By 1512 the lot contained a2 multiple dwelling owned by merchant Bznjamin Stephens and occupied by

him, broker Francis Lamberr, ship merchane William Lippencoty, and Mrs, Lippencott, who is listed as

2 widow and therefores was probably William's mother. At the time of the 1833 fire, No. 79 Pearl was

- pwned by John L. Stephans and occupied by the mercham firm of Stephens, Corlies & Denison

(Benjamin Sigphens, Ir. was a paciner), meanwhile 46 Stone Street was the home of Jazob H. Corlies.
Following the bire, merchant John V. Greenfield. who owned and occupied the adjacent ot at No. .

77 Pearl, purchased Mos. 79 and 81 Peart Street and erecied thres block-through store and loft buildings

on the theee tots By the end of 1836, No, 79 Pearl was completed and occupled by T, Jackson & S.

Deuel, dry goods: in 1851 the bullding was occupied by the erockery business of W B. Thompson &

W.H. Lyon, Other sigaificant awnars fbut nol occupants) were buginessman Robert Kermit, who, with

steel maechant Charles Carow, was a partner in the firm Rermic & Cacow; and Carow’s daughters Edith

K. Carow, second wife of Theodore Eoosevelr, and Emily T. Carow {1865/66-1939), a long-time resident

of [taly who was a lcader in hospital work among soldiers fighting in [taly during World War L.

19003

By 1950 the building was used for the storage and repair of office furniture; by 1986 it was an eating and
drinking establishment.

LPC Srane Street Hisroric Districe Repore (LP-i938) (New York: City of New York, 1998), prepared by
David M. Breiner -- pages 31-32

Landmacks Preservation Cominitssion. Research Fites {Stone Soreet BlockS Lot files, prepared
by David M. Breiver. of ai)

tiss Emily T. Carow obituary, MYT. Mar. 21, 1939, p. 23,

H-1%




LOT 24
No. 81 Pearl Street afksa 45 Stone Street
Tax. Map Block/Lot: 20/24

Built ¢12336 possibly by merchant John V. Greenfield: architect unknown. 4 story with basement, brick,
stare and 1ofl building.

Histary of the site

1600s :

This lot was pant of the paccel graated in 643 o Thomas Willett, a sotdier in the West India Company's
service, In 1660 dhis ot seemis 10 have contaned one howse (Mo, 48 Swone St) built out to the
corbline This building b¢longed o Charles Eridgts and Sarah Willett Bridges. {n 1692 William Bradford
was appointed public printer and on this sitz established the firse printing press in North America. {A

plague installed in [B93 by the New-York Histocieal Society on the 48 Peacl Sueet fromt explains the
historical connections o Bradford’s printing press.)
L 70K)s

The lot remained 1 ihe Willere family ontil 1783.The ITJD Map shows brick row housss were hers: the
796 Map shows that the entire Block was built up.

1 800s

In 1812 gnz Rebert Graham lived at No. 8] Peari Street. in 1834, No. 31 was occupied by the dry goods
firm of A. Ehle, N.F. Bailey & Company (afkfa Ehle. Bool & ‘Bailsy] and since 1824 had been owned
by emarchan: Andrew C. Zabriskia, vost likely the grandtather or uncle of businessinan and philanthropist
Andraw C, Zabriskiz, who later was prasident of che Amacicar Mumismatic & Archaenlngldal Society
and one of the largest real estare owners in New York Cioy.

Following the 1833 fire, in 1834 merchant John V. Greenfield bought this No. 81 Pearl St, and
he also owned the fots at Nos. 77 and 79 Pearl Siree. and he procesded to ereci three store and lofe
buildings oo the chree lois. Zabrizkiz reacquired No. 81 in 1842, By 1831 it was occupied by the glass
busipess of the Douglass Brothers (Earl and Alfted). In 1886 it was purchased and otcupied by Jobn E.
Peviin & Co., imporiers, _ '

1900

From 1901 to 1903 No. 81 Pearl 5. was owned by audtney Paul M. Heezog, whoss office was on
William Streel. Dluring the ewentisth century. the building has been used for the manufacture and sale
of cigarettes {by 19791 and then as a Chinese Restaurant (e1995).

LPC Stone Streer Historie Diserier Reporr (LP-1933) {.New York: City of Mew York, 1996), prepared by
David M. Breinsr -- pagas 3334

Landmarks Preservation Comunission. Reseacch Files {510ne Street Blockf Lot files, prepared
by David M. Bretner, et ai)

"Herzog, Paul M.." Wha's Wha in New York City and Stare. Lst gd, (1904), 300.
A.C. Zabriskie obiwary, N¥T, Sept. 16, 1316, p. 11,

"Zabriskie, Andrew Christian,” Who Was Whe in America. vol. 1 {1943, 1393,
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LOT 23 '
Mo, B3 Pearl Steeet aflfa 50 Stone Street
. Tax Map E-ItrckJ'Lot: 29/23

Buily clalﬁ possibly by merchanis, Obadialy Holmes 2nd James Q. Balley architect unknown. 4 swory
with basement, brick, store and laft building

History of the site

1600s o

This Tot was part of the parcel grantad in 1645 w Thomas Willett, & soldier in the West India Caompany's
- sarvice. By L1660 two smalf honses szam to have bedn on this 1at, ane ar No. 50 Stone, nsar the curbline,

and one at No, 83 Peard, set back frony the sireet.  These buildings belonged o Charles Bridges and Sarah '
Witterr Bridges.

17005
The ot cemained in the Willetr Bamily witil 1783, The 1730 Map shows briek row houses were here; the
1796 Map shows that the entire block was built up,
18000 .
[n 1812 Na. 83 Pearl Streer was accupied by the marchants F. Bounel and J. Delom.

Since 1825 and at the time of the 833 fire. No. 83 Pearl was owned by Obadiah Holmes and
Fames . Bailey. panners in a Front Streer mercannle firm {they sull owned 83 Peart in 1839, By 1836
they had erected a store ard foft structure which was occupied by I, Underhill & 5. Seymour, seliers of
crockery. By 1851 the vecupants included W, Sacken, E. Lynes & Company, hatdware; and H. Denison,
R, Williams & Company, umbrellas, - Long-time owners of the building included: from 1878 w 1883,
cigar importer and consul Bartolome Blanco and his family, from 1383 to 1886, auorney and public
speaker Frederic R. Couden (1832-1903}, a president of the Bac Association of Mew York, direcor of
the Union Pacific Railroad, and Uniced States couasel to international trade agrzements; and from 1386

to 1898, by Gearge . Guion, 2 dezler i Moroeto leather who became a real estate investor.

From 1598 to 1922, No. 83 Peacl Street was owned by Charles Myers, whose insurance office was on
South William Steeet. Mos. 83 and 85 Pearl were joingd on the intzrior in 196% [Alt 903-1969]. During

the cwentiath tentury, the building was accupied, amous othae uses, by offices and  factory, and by 1979
by a restaurant with offices at the uppar storigs.

LEPC Stone Street Historic Districe Reporr (LP-19338) (New York: Chy of New York, 1998), prepared by
David M. Bretner -- pages 34-35

Landmarks Prasarvation Commission. Research Files (Stone Steeet Blocks Lot files, prepared
by David b, Breiner, e af)

“Coudart, Fredaric René,” Who Wos Whe in America, vol, 1 (1943), 265.
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LOT 24
Mao. B3 Pearl Street afldfa 32 Stone Streat
Tax hlap Block/Lot: 29426

Built ¢1836 passibly by mtrcham Gearge Suckley and atoeney Rutsen SucLlE} architect unknown. 4
story with basemeant, brick, siore and loft building.

History of the sice
This seems to be the norcheramast portion of the 16345 Willett grant, aod it was adiacent to & small lans
connecting the Waal (Pearl Screet} to Hoogh Strast {Stone Sicaer). This site was sold by Charles Bridges

ta ravaen ownege Solomen La Chair {d. 1662/63). In 16538 La Chait builc a curbside dwelling facing the.

Waal (35 Pearly and moved his tavern into e new building. However, the business did not succeed, and
he sold the struzture in 1661 o bursomasier. Oloff Sievensen van Cortlant. A second, more modest

hosre faced the curbling of Hoogl Straet {32 Stone Streer and was sold in 1686 by the admuustramrs
of La Cluwir's estate 1o 4 shoema qu:r

170tk '
The 1730 Map shows brick row houses werz here; the 1796 Map shows that the entire block was built
up. '
- 1800s
in 1814 the ot was owned by Firss Caprain of Arcitlery, Nicholas DePeysier, when he sold it o M.
Bruzn of Pesth Amboy, New Jersey: part of the ot was bousht by mecchant T. Beccing in 1514; and in
18235 Bruen s0ld the whole 1o Manhias B. Edgar and Corncllus Baker, who after the 1833 ﬁre sold the
whole 1ot to merchant Gegree Suckley and amorney Bursen Suckley in 1836,
By the end of 1836 1he Sucklevs seem 10 have had had construcied a store and loft buildmg By
(845 No. 85 Pear] Street and 52 Stone Street (the through the block building of lot 26) was eecupisd by
e drygoods firm of 0. Tweady, G. Jenings & Co.; and in 1831 ocoupans included the hasdware fiom
of T. Dennistoun & 5. owrow The Suckley t'zrml:, reained ownership of the lot until 1923,
1900
Mas. 83 and 85 Pearl St were joined on the interior in 1969 [Alt 905-1969], During the tw entieth CENEULY,
the building was occupied, among other uses, by a firm dealing in sails, couon duck, canvas, and relaed
cloth items; and by 1970 it was a restaurant below offices at the upper stories.

LPC Stone Sreer Historic Disirice Report (LP-1938) (Mew York: City of New York, 1994), prepared by
David . Breiner -- pages 35-34

Landmacks Preservation Commission. Research Files (Swone Street Bloeks Lot files, prepared
by David M. Brainer, &2 af}
Stokes. fcomegraphy (1915-283, vol. 11, 321-322,
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LOT 27 (formezly lots 27, 28)
No. 33-58 Stone Strest afk/a 87-39 Pear!l Srreet
Tax Map Block{Lot: 29/3%

Built 1836 possibly by merchant Jolw Steward, Jr., architeer, unknown: enlargements and alierations
in 1893 (Alr 252-1893] by architect Jordon & Giller, and in 1919 [AN 1204-1919] by architect; A.C.

Jackson. & stories with basement on Stone Street, 7 stories with basement on Pearl Street, brick and-
stone, store and loft building,

- Hisrory of the .me
1800

AL No. 87 Pear] Strect was Richard Smith's smnv:{"} dweliing, which was built clé631 afier he had
acquired this Jand in 1645, This dwelling stood facing the wharf and a1 the nonk east corner of a private
“lane” connesting Stone and Pearl Strect: the lane was probably openad also in 1651 bur was closed in

1662. Another Luilding at 54 Stone at curbside was probably an out building for the main house (87

Pearl). Nevar a parmanemt resident of New Awmstecdam, Smith had his attorney s211 those two buildings
in 1662Te Tamas Wandzl.

LF00s :

Tha 1730 Map shows brick row houses werz here: the 1796 hap shows that the earice block was built
up.

Far mast of the ninsteenth cenrury. the sire consistad of nwo lots. For a time. No, §7 Pearl was the home
of shoemaker Joseph Sayre; wlile No. 89 Pearl was ocoupied by JT. Hall and Miss Sarah Penay, a
maker of mantuas (a type of cloak or manile). tn 1834 the firm of merchant Malibie Weed occupied No,
87 Peari Street, a commercial building erscted 1825 by merchants Mawhias B, Edgar and Cornelius
Baker, while Gideon & Jacab Frost, drygoods merchants, occupied No. 89, The owner of both these
buildings was merchant, Johin Steward: i had acquirad No. 89 in 1824 and had pussessmn of Mo, 87
by 1325,

After the L83S Fire, Steward had erecred rwo four-&nd-ane-half—sm:y, through-the-Mock, siore
and loft buildings and retained ownership unil 1833, In 1831 No. 87 Pearl/ 54 Stone Screer was occopied
by the hardware concern of J. Van Ancwerp & F. Massol and tha fancy goods firm of Lyman, Codke
& Company: whereas Na. 89 Pearl/ 36 Stone Streer was occupied by Roberison, Eaton & Company,
merchane: G, Hubbell & ). Pawee. hordware: and Hartman Markee, straw goods. Steward converted the
buildings for office use in 1871 [Alk 667-1871). Lawyer. E.A. Wilcox obtained the pioparty in the 1880s,
and in 1893 Wilcox conveyed it to Mary E. Armitage, who (o the desians of Jordan & Giller [Alt 252-
1893], increased the height af these siructures 1o six swories and united them i what became known

as the Armirage Building. The architecis of che building, Julius Jordan and Lowis Giller, both residents
of Brooklyn. mainiained an architeciural olfice in dvlanhattan from 1887 to 1901,

19005

From 1901 o 1919, koo 87-89 Pear) Street was aeain owned by Franklin A, Wilzox, by then a
prominent YWall Srreer attorney and developer of real esiare. :

Interpationally pramiaent insucance ex2cutive Percy Chabb [1857/58-1%30) purchased Lthe property
in 1919 and commissionad an extensive alteration [Al 1204-1919] far his firm of marine insurance
underwriters, Chubb & Son, which had been founded in 1883 by Mr. Chubb and his father, Thamas
Catdecow Chubb. The Chubb group owned the building until 1937, Alterations w the Chubb building
wece tarried out by architect AC. Jackson in 1919 (Al 1204-1919): Jackson designzd a n2w stone facade
for the 34-36 Stone Steeer elevation. To the 91-83 Pearl Sueet facade, Jackson added 2 seventh stocy.

LEC Stone Street Hustoric District Report (LP-1938) (New York: City of New York. 1996), prepared by
David M. Breiner -- puges 49-50
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Landmarks Presecvation Commission. Research Files (Stone Street Block/ Lot files, prepaced
oy David M. Brzinetr, er af)

‘Stakes, feonography (1915-28), vol. {1, 321.322.
Franklin A. Wilcox obituary, N¥T, Aug. 27, 1908, p. 7.
Percy Chubb obitwary, NYT, June 18, 1930, p. 31,

LOT 29

tvo. 91-93 Pearl Street afk/a 55 Stane Street
Tax Map Block/Lot: 29/29

Built £1835-37 by eicher Henry Jamas, druygise, or Heary Sheldan, merchant. S stwories with basemant,
bricks stone. sioie and lofi building.

History of the sire
16005
The lot, part of the 1645 Smith proparty, contained in 1660 what seams to have been a storehouse
posstbly built by Eichard Smith in 1651 . 11 steod in the cereer of the bor; cha ot fronted on a wharf ($1-
93 Pearl Sireet). The lot and the linle storehouse were sold in 1661-1662 o Jan Hendeiksz Steslman.
1700s - -
The 1730 Map shows brick row houses were here. En 1786 Augustus Sidall and his mother Magdalen
owhed a howse probably at the 58 Sione Sweet curbline. The 1796 Map shows that the entire block was
built up.
128005 ) _
The site contained four subdivisions. [n 1812, No. 91 Pearl St. was accupied as a mulriple dwelling: its
residents included mariner Robert Allen. and boot maker A.J. Voorhess: while No. 93 Prarl was
occupiad by the firm of Hoit & Jarvis. No. 38 Stone St was the home of a Mrs. Williamson in 1812,
If one givas the addeess of 33 Stone 1o the SW quadraat, o, 5BA Stoae to the NW guadrant,
- No. 91 Pear] 1o the S5E quadrant. and 93 Paarl o the NE quadrane, then the owners prior 1o the fire
were: |) at 55 Stone: the Sidell family sold this w fawyer, L. Catlin in 1817, Catiin to carpenter, R
Carmen in 1826, he to druggist Haacy James in 1831, 2} 58A Swone: P VanDerlyn sold it 10 Reverend
Peter Lowe, a retigious minister in Ftatbush in 1303, Lowe o biacksmith, William QGsborn in 1814
Osbom o merchants F. Pentz & G. Pameroy in 1827; B & P druggist H. James in 1831; 3) 91 Peaarl:
the Bank af New York soid this o the Cruger family in 1816; atorney, solicitor and counsel, Henty N
Cruger sold il to widow, Ann Rogers in 1830, and she 1o H. James in 1831; 4) %3 Paarl Straer: from
several parties, merehant A. Van tNest acquired this property in (813; he sold it 10 Pentz & Pomeroy in
1825, who sold it 10 H. James in [830.
Thus, inthe excly 13308 just prior to the |B33 ftr-: all four parcels were owned by druggist, Dr.
Heney James, It is unclear whether Yanes had four buildings builc after the fire, or whethar it was
merchant Hanry Sheldon who had them built, bue in 1844 Sheldon sold four buildings hers {91, 93 Pearl
56%, 38 Swone) 1o real estare speculater, and Virginia native. John B. Lesisur, who was the owner until
1864. By 1851 this emtire lot had one address. Mo, 93 Pearl’ 38 Stone, and the occupants wers, in 1831,
T. Vietor & G. Dhekwitz, importers of German and Swiss goods: and A Reid & 1. Sprapue. hardware
merchants. The 1851 Map shows one buildinr covaring this tor. [n 1864 John B, Lesiawr (4. 1876}, 2
tang-time residene of France whose forlung was due in peear part 2 invesiments in New York real astate
sold the property 10 Adrian B. Westervelt. an imsporcer of 1ron and manufacturer of American ocedn
steaniaes. Westarvelt soid it o widow. Muildy Whic in 183t

1-17




15005

Ms. White sold the boilding to C_F. Bishop in 1912, and he to D.F. Fareall in 1919, who in 1920 sold
it to the Hamilton Press, and the upper floors in 1920 were convarted from distillery 1o press rooms. {An
octupant seeins o have beeo German-born George Ehret, 2 notable philanthropist and prosperons

“brewer.) A restadrant in the building at the time of the 1996 designation was connected internally 1o the
restaurant in the basement of [ndia House,

LPC Stone Sereer Historic Districe Repert (LP-1938) (New York: City of New Yark, 1996), prepared by
- David M. Breiner -- pages 36-37

Landmarks Preszrvation Commission, Ressarch Files (Stone Street Bioek/ Lot files, prepaced
by Dravid . Breiner, e al}

John B. Lesieur obituary, N¥YT, hayv 20, 1876, p. 2.
Swikes, feonography {1915.28), vol. 1T, 321-312.

"Ehret, George,” Wio's Who fn New York Ciry and Srare, 4ih ed. (1909, 446.
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LOT 23
HANQVER SQUARE/ STONE 5T/ PEARL ST

HANOVER BANK BUILDING / kater IND1A HOUSE

Ne. 1-2 Hanover Square #dk/a 93-105 Pearl Street a/k/a 60-(63) Stone Street
Tax Map Black/Lot: 20/33 {formeely fots 30-33

This site is an individually designates] New York City Landmark {LB# 0042). Absotbad into the Stone
Sreael Historie District.

Present Block 29/ Lot 33 consists of § parts, Pants 1, 2, 3 are what were formecly 3 southerly lats which
g0 theough 1he block berwean Stone and Pear) Streer, Fart 4 i 2 3 bay building which is adjacant o India
Haousz, faces onto Stong Street, and gozs halfway theough the block; Part 5 is the north &nd blagk-wide
facads of Indiz House, and faces Havover Squars; aod Part 6 is a 2 bay addition to India House and
faces Peard Streat; this extension replicatas the architecrural slements of the Hanover Square facade, Al .
these structures are inter-connected interiorly, aud the basements serve as the restaurant/ bar of [ndia
Housz. All &xeept Paris 5 and & werz built in the mid 1o laie 1830s.

Bern cen 1831 and 1872 Pans 4.5 and 6 were the Hanover Bank (Part 5 buiir 1851-1834, and Part 6 had
bezn built in the mid 18303). Between 1872 and 1883 Paris 3.4.5 and & were the Naw York Cotion
Exchange. Between 1883 and 1912 Parts 3.4.5 and & werz George Ehler's W. R, Grace & Co. Alfter
1918 untdl today Pans 1,2,3 4.5 and 6 have belonged 1o the India House Men's Club.

Part 1. [60 Stone 5¢, 93-97 Pearl 5t] '

Buili ¢1336, by John Steward Jr. dry goods, archiiect anknown. 4 storyf basement; brick/ stone.

Sire History

160Kk

On land granted 1o Richard Smith 1643, this empey log was sold by Smith’s aorney o JTan Hepdriksen

Sreglman as "an improved loc” {fepced and graded) in 1662, The 1ot was built upon in the 17th century;

in 1674 it was said there was 3 camain brick {or stone 7) fioise at 95 Pearl when Hendrick Wessels Ten

Brozck bought it. The Pearl Street facade was at curbside and abutted a wharf at the East River.

17005

The 1730 Map sh-uws brick row hooses were here; The 1726 Map shows that the #ntire hlock was bailt

up.

13005 :

In 1352 No, 93-97 Pear] St and No. 60 Stone Streae wera multipte dwellings. In 1330 John Srewart Jr
madz an "Agreement” to take the praparty: his dry goods company remained in the building here in 1834,

1835 and 1836.

Stewart st have had if rebuile after the 1335 fire, The 1. Steward & Co. dry goods remained
in this building an [=ask through 1876, However, also occupying the buildiag in 1833537 was Swords,
Halsra:d & Cerning, merchanes.

15003
Betwian 1914 and 1924 Nos. 5597 Pearl Sereer, which for many decades had been associated with the
Stzward intzrests, was incorparted as a southemn exiension sa the main body of the India House building.
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Part . [62 Stone 5t, 99 Pear] St} :

Built ¢1836 by William Raymond. dry goods; architect unknuwn 4 story! basement, brick! stone,
Site History

16003

This is on fand granied to Richard Smaith in (635, and is probably on the parcel sold to Evers Duyckingh
in 1656. who builc a comfortable (brick! stone ?) hiouse here facing the curbline of 62 Stone Street, The
house was large enough (2 span jo 64 Stone Street (See Part 3).

1500

Duykingh heirs remained in the house uncit 1727, The 1730 Map shows briek row ¢ houses were here; the
1796 tlap shows that the entire block was buile up.

1800 -
fn 1312 No. 99 Pearl was occupied by a bookbinder (a Duykiagh). [n 835 the property was sold by HH
Elic (hardware) ro Widiane Raymend (dry goods).

Afigr the 1833 Fire ic must have been Ravmond who had the present building constructed because
in [836 the eccupanr (99 Pearl Sty was stitl Ravond & Co (dry goods). Weed & Co {i-nerchamsfdry
goads) occupied 99 Paarl in 1839-40. o 1341 Raymond had a lawsuit azainst A Lamb concerning the
prapey and was hare ar least uncil 1833: other occupanes included TA Halliday, wines; in 1876 it was
owned by a Lainot. However, by 1899 No. 99 Pearl Strear, then owned by engineer, Manley B.

Boardman, and his heies, was acquired and absorbed into the WR Grace & Ceo. (later, Tndia Houss)
building{s).

. 15005
The basement and areaway are par: of the restaurant and bar of India House.

" Part 3. [64 Stone St, 10t P:arl St)

‘Built c1836 possibly by George Sucl.le'l- merchantf al:mrncy archieect unknowi, 4 s:m‘y.l’ basement,
brick! stona.

Site History

16005 .

Thiz 15 on land granced to Richard Smith tn 1645, and is probably on the parcel sold in 1656 ta Evert
Duyckingh, who built his houss at 62-64 Stone Satreet. {(S=e Parnt 2 above}

1700 ' :

The Duykingh family was ia the house until 1727, The 1730 Map shows berick row houses were here,
the 1796 Map shows that the entiee Block was built up,

18005 '

in 1812 No 101 Pearl St was o wuliiple dwelling: No. 64 Stone 5t was oecupied by a washerwoman. In
1851 thus lod went from E. Field to E. Corning, marchant. From at least 1834 10 ar lzast 1833, the
accupant was Swords, Holstend & Carning. msrchants.

There was a lawsuit betwean E Corning and merchant/ attorney, George Suckley on 3/7/1336,

and Suckley may have been the owner from 1836 because ha and his hetrs were the owners from 1845
througlt 1865, After die 1835 fire, Suckley may have had this building built. In 1836, this building was
-oecupied by Baldwin & Co, dry goods and Leggett & Smith, dry goods. Leggett & Smith cantineed 10
be here fror 1337 10 1839, However in 1BS1 the pccupanr was Hawley & Mumford, ceockery. In 1865
the hetrs of George Suckle_', caded the building 1o the merchant’ tobacco business of Raberi L Maitland

& Co. Maitland died in 1870, and in 1877 this building was marged with the Cotton Exchange (later,
India House) building(s). ,

19005

The basemeut and {Pearl St zreawsy ace parc of the bar and restaveant of Indiz House at least singe 1914
{All 1138-1914).

112,




Part 4. [No 66 Stone, {i03Pear] St)] .

Built ¢1838 possibly by Edward Gould, merchan; architect unknown. 3 siory with basement, brick/.
stone. '

Site History

1600%

This is part of land granted in 1633 1o Abraham Mamens Clock, a Rensselaer (Holland) carpenter who
arrived in Mew Amsterdam by 1653 and worked here as a miller, This is the south wastern side of
Cleck’s Tand, and in the Lue 1600s Clock's widow, Tremje. sold his property, which had been het
parden, and the propenty Was eventuslly sequired in 1673 and dwift on by Nicholas Bayard, town official
and adviser 1o the governar,

LA . _

The 1730 Map shows brick row houses were here: the 1796 Map shows that the entire block was buill
up.

1500

In 1§33, the year of the fire, the occupaut was Jotn Lang & Co., publisher. In 1839, the occupant was
marchant Edward Gould, and he may hava built this bullding (it once had a commercial ground story).
The extant foeude, particularly the upper stary, indicates thac this buildiag and probably another similar
te it fand stmilar to the 3 buildings ot Nos. é4. 62 and 80 S:one S0y were built as a row,

In 183! the occupant was George Hustings & Co., imponers, and in tha year this building and
that facing Hanover Square (Part 3} passed 1o the Hangvar Bank, who then buile the main building from
Stens 1o Pearl St.. This building ac No. 66 Stons Straet was then altzred o align its fensstration with that
of the bark: {Indiz House) building: its contmercial base was removed. Significant ironwork SUEVives as
an elaborate tirg escape connecting MNos. 64 and 66 Swne Streer. The Hanover Bank buiiding was bailt
in 1831-54, but the bank 1efr here in L8272, and rhe building hecame the New York Cotroi Exchange

from 1872 o 1883, and W .R, Grace & Co. occupied the banks exchange building (Pars 4,5, and 6) from
1535 10 1912,

19HH)s . o .
In 1914, George Ehrar, a brawar and raal esrace investor, who owned the building renavared it for the
Trclia House club of foreign trads business men, and a club member, Willard Straight, bought the building
in 19138 acd spen bis widow sofd it to fndia House, In 1924-25, (he architectural firm Delano & Aldrich
did renavations. This may have included basentent/ cellar enlargemants/ alierations because the basement
of 66 Stene is part of the restaurand bac of lodia House..

Part 5. (Nos. (68 Stofe 31), 1-2 Hanover Square, 103 £103) Pearl St)

Ruilt 18311852 by Hanover Bank, architect unknown. 3 siory/ basement, stona/ brick,

The 2ddrass 68 Stone Screer is used here ta distinguish the western end af this building from 66 Stone
St which was 2 separate building (Part 4}.

Sire History

16005 .

This is part of land granted in 1535 10 Abraham Marens Clock, o Rensselaee {Holland) carpamter who
arrived in Mew Amsterdum by 1653 angd worked here a5 2 mibler. Far his son Albert, Clock built 2 small
stonz ) Rouse here facing nacth (1-2 Hanover Square). This butlding’s narth facade, which was only
23 fret wide, wis at the Hanover Square curblipe, [n 698 his brothers had hauses adjoinmg this one,
1700 |

The 1730 Map shows beick cow hous2s were here: the 796 Map shows that the encire block was bt
up. '

n 1812 Mo, 105 Pearl St was a mwltiple dwelling: in 1834, 105 Pearl wos occupisd by William Rawson's
shoe store.
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Afer the [833 fire, Francis T Luqueer, hardware. was the ficsi occupant and may have been the
builder, and in LE3T it was sald by FT and Mary Luquear vo Hanover Bank (Past 4, 66 Stone St, was
also sold fo the Hanover Bank in L851). The Hanover-Bank building, 1-2 Hanover Square, was
constructed in 1831-54. bul the 1857-1862 Map indicates that by that rime the replicating addition ar No.
103 P2acl St (Part 6) was not built. {No. 103 Peasl was built as an exteasion. wtilizing the architectural
styfe of the main facade sometime between 1862 and |§79, Sae Part 6.) The bank changad location ia
1872, and the building became the NY Cowon Exchinge tram 1872 10 1883, and brewer! George Ehret’s
building, W.R. Griwe & Co., oceupied the haaks exchangz butlding from 1883 w 1912, No. 101 Paarlf
64 Stone (Part 3% was part of the Couon Exchange by 1577, and Mo, 99 Pearlf 62 Stone (Part 23 wasd

part of Ehrer's building by 189%9; and, Tinally. a’t:v:r 1899 l:n.u before 1914, Mo, 93-97 Pearlf 60 Swone
{Part 1) was part of Iocdia House.

1K)

[ 19057 1506 No. | Hmmvcr Sautire was pocupied by Swatale Brothers liquars. [o 1914, owner George
Ehrat tepovaied dhe buiiding for e lodia Hous2 club of faraign trade business men. and a club tnember,
Willued Straiglit, bouglyt the building in 1918, a0d soon his widow, Darothy Paine Whitney Steaight (farer

Elmhicsty, sold it o India House, Lo (923225 the archirzzunal fum Datana & Aldrich did renovations.

This may have included basement/ cellar anlargements” zlizrations because the hasemant and areaways
beeame the rescurzatd bar of Indin House.

Part 6. [N¢. 103 Pearl Si)

Built <1862 by-Hanover Bank; architect unlﬂmu R 3 stary with basement, brick! stone.

Siie History
16005

This was pan of the Jand granced in 1653 1o Abrabam Martens Clock, a Rensselaer {Holland) carpentes
wha acrived in Mew Amsterdam by 1653 and worked hers as a miller. By 1660 Clock had erecied a
substantial stane (7)) dwelfing for himself on this lot, facing Peacl St (103 Pearl 1), and siting close to
the curbline. The Pearl 5t facade abutted a wlarf on the Ease Rivee,

The 1730 Map shows Brick row houses were g, the 1796 Map shows that the entire block was buils
ug.

IPEHL"IS .

in (812 MNo. 103 was occupied by o privwer: by 1834 and at the time of the 1835 fire the t:u’:lding was
occupied by Andrews & Hunt. merchants.

It may have been E. MeGaul. the owner in (336, who had the building built. In 1836 the
awnarship passed w0 Williaon Swan, dry gogds. Swan & Co. was here at l2ast wneil [B39; from about
1845 the bailding was oscupied by Paear Lorillard, tobazcos, who was still here in 1838, although in
1851 W HL Livingswon & Co., hardware, was an occupant. The additien to the bank must have been buile
as un extension, utilizing the architzciurad style of e main fcade. sometime between 862 and 1819,
as confiemed by tha 18571362 dap. which indicates tha 103 Paarl was a separate building from the
bank, and may have still been the 18505 building. Hanover Bank lefi this location in 1872.and 103 Pearl

became part of the NY Cotron Exchange from 1372 w0 (385, and pnr{ of Ehret's William R. Grace &
Co. [Puarts 4,5, and 6) from 1885 o 1912,

RN

In 1914 owner George Ehret renowared the building for the [ndia House club of foreign trade business
men, and a member, Willard Straighn, boughe the building in 1918 and soon his widow sold it wa Tndia
House, tn 1924-23, the archizacural fizm Delano & aldsich did renovaticns. This may have included

basamnep’ cellar enfzrgements! altecations because the baszment and areaways became the rastaurane bae
of Ikl House.
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LPC. $tone Sifeer Historic Districe Reporr (LP-193%) (Naw York: City of New York, 1996}, prepared
by David M. Breiner -- pages 23-28

Landwarks Preservation Cotunission. Research Files (Swone Street Block! Lot Files, prepared
by David M. Breiner, 2¢ af}
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WILLIAM STREET! SOUTH WILLIAM STREET/! STONE STREET! MILL LANE

LOT 3

J. & VY. SELIGMAN & COMPANY BUILDING/ later LEHAAN BROTHERS BUILDING;
now Banca Commerciale Traliana Building

fvo. DWilkiam Street aflfa 1-9 Williomn 51, 1-7 Soutl illiam Etrtet 83.57 Stone Street
Tax Map Block 29, Lot 36

This sih: 15 an individumdly designated New Yark City Landmark (LP-1943}). [t is outside the Stons
Sereet Historic Discict, although it is gegaraplically contiguons with it.

Built in 1906-07 (NB 3537-1906). Acchiteers: Francis H. Kimball and Julisn C. Levi: George A. Fulles
Co,, butlders; Souch William Srreer facada aleracon 1929, Harey R, Allen, archigesr: addition 1982- 35
Gino Valle, architect. 11 story! basement, stone office building.

Site History
16005

In 1660 at the south east corner of this tot {No. 63 Stone 51), bwt norh of the "lll:tle lana”, was the finest
stone(?) house on the blogk, that of Rutger Jacobsen, ancestor af the Rurgers family of N:w York and
Albany, Nextro this was the siona(?) fiowse (63 Swane 5. which was "o bewer sivle than the majoriy™
built by merchant shipbuilder Marcus Hendrick Vogelsang 1636, the year it was sald to Willism
Herick, who sold it to Thomas Wendel in 1560, who sold it ro Conrast Ten Eyck in 15673, MNext o this
was [l stona{?) howse {No. 67 Stane So3 built by Michisl Janse <1657, when Willian Street was opanad,
but from 1658 to 1667 the owner wis Dirck Jansen van Deventer, a smith. All three houses were at the
Seone Streat curbline., At Lthe nootl east commer of this lot (o | William Sweelf 67 Stone Street) was the
stanst’} howse which in 1660 belonged o master voopzr Meindert Barentsen and his wife, Geenje Jans
Swffalsen, who, as witnessed by Burger Torwsen in a law suit, had had the house built befote 1657.
170
ﬁﬁﬂﬂ Wap shows that there were I:ruildmﬂs all afong Scane Streer and William Streer in this lot. The
1736 Map shows that the entire bloek hiad been huilt up,
| 800s ' ' :
- A first Conveyance for this location was in 1813, | Willians 5S¢/ 67 Stone Street, 1ot 36, South William
Stezet must have been cur through this sit2 1o connect'to William Street by 1826 (this cut is seen on the
1530 Dripps Map, bur not on the 1796 Map). By 1816, the north west corner had been loted -- lot 38
was 5-7 Witham, lot 3% was 8 William/ | South William. Jot 40 was 3 South Wiltiam. i.e. the cur
Witliam had been rmade. In 1826 iese three buildings were conveyed by William Band 1o John Noble.
[ 1232 Noble sold fots 38 and 40 o John Tavior who still owned them in 1839, It may have been Taylor
who had the small commercial butldings builc heee after the disasuwous 1835 fire, Joseph and James
Selipman, sons of 2 German Jewish Bavarian weaver, had immigrated in the late 1830s and early 1840s,
ard they had gpened a clothinge shop at No. 5.7 Williany St (lat 38) by 1848, In 1840 John Taylor sold
Mo. ¢ William {lot 33) w drygoods merchiamis Amas Eno and John Phelps. who, along with John Focbat,
seany 1o have owned it until 1865, Also in 1840 Tavlor sold No. 3 § Wiiliam (log 40) to Rardware
merchant F.T. Luguesr. who siill owned it in 1867, Eno and Luguaer ware developers of other propertics
withis the Historic Districe.  Fleeher Westray owned 9 William inl863 and 3 3 William in 1867. From
¢ 1875 chroweh the turn of the centtiry, the cansistent ownee of these twa lots (3%, 40) as well a3 of 3
Witliam and 57 Willéaro (lots 37, 38) wis Joha Dewsnap and Eamily.

Lot 37, 3 William Streer, was bouglu by cacpenier Richard Carmen in 1835, and it may have
hean bz wito had had the commercial building built aftar the 1835 fiee. He was a daveloper for other
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properties within the Historle Districr. This lot was owned by Thomas Davies in 1878, and by John
Dewsmap [tom 1878, Lot 36, | William/ 67 Stone Sueets, the earliest lotted proparty {1813), was also
bought by Thomas Davies in 1853 and was still owned by his Trusiees through the turn of the ¢entury,
Lot 41, 63 Sionef 5 5 William, and io 42, 63 Swne! 7 5 William/ a fong Fzcade on Mill Lane,
‘were  Lwa through the block commercial buildings built certainly by 1850, By 18835 they had been
comkined into one building {lot 42), called at the rarn of the century BE & Son.
1900s
During the Civil War (he Setigman brothers clothiers who had been ar 5 Wiltiam (lor 38) had becoms
prosperaus  supplytng Union soldier uniforms, and by 1903, the Seligman Brothers had a highly
developed invesument banking firm. In 1905 they boughe theie ald shop from the family of Dewsnap and
alsa tha other four tots of this nonh end of this site. Lot 36 was baught from the heirs of Thomas Davis.
and Its 37, 39, 4G from Dewsnap. All these buildings were then demalished and the present 1] story
building was built in 1906 (Kimballf Levt Architect). The Selizman & Co. building was sold 1o the One
& Threa South Wilham Streat Building Carp. in 1919 was acguired by Manderbaum & Levine [nc in
1924: and by the investment fittn of tle Lelunan Brothers in 1923, Amaong other 1929 sipararions zrchitect
Harry allen designed a aew corner entrange at the William/ 5 William corner. In 1961 che Lehroan
Brothers acquired ot 42, The 20th centucy building and the (formerly two) 1%th centry building(s)
becaiz one lot {Mo. 38). which was sold o Banca Commercialz Iraliana in 1951, The building(sh on the
former ot 43 were demolished. and between 1982 and 1986 2 modern edditien was constructed in 2is
place idesigned by architect Gino Yalle) for e Banca Cotmunerciaie [taliana.

LPC L &W. Selipman & Campany Building flarer Lefimn Brohers Building; now Banca Commerciale
Laliong Buitding) Historic Designarion Reporr (LP-1942) - (New ‘fork City of New Ym‘k 1996},
prepated by Jay Shockley, Ressarch Departmant.

Landmacks Presaervation Commission. Research Filas (S2ligman Bus.ldmg L William Strear B]-:Jck." Lot
files. prepared by Jay Shockley, et aly

Stokes, feonography (1915-28), vol, 11, 302-304,
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SOUTH WILLIAM STREET/ STONE STREET/ MILL LANE

LOT A3

Mo, D-11 South William Street afk'a 9 Mitl Lane a/kfa 89-61 Stone Street
Tax Map Block/Loi: 29/43 {formerly jois 43 and 44)

Built 1924-2% [Deina 326-1924; Al 2362-1924; Damo 319-1925; Al 19?3-1'}13] _
Arclitest: William Neil Smuh. 6 1/2 o 7 stories with basemant. brizk/ scene, office building.

History of the site

16005 :

On e land granted o landowner \Wessal Everisen in 1646, builder Frans Jansen built a howure
{c1660-63} for Asser Levy, a Jewish buecher and moneylender. Asser Levy successfully fought for
permission froar che own "to keep guard with other burghers™ despite the disinciination of his fellow
ownsmen b sarve with Jews. Baside e Levy house fronting Swone St with its fong side on Mill
Lane was a stone{?y hanse buile betore 1660 by Jacob Haey, o prosperous trader.

b 20

The tane adjacent o the Haey propecty was very narrow and remained so for & century, In 1754
residents petitioned 2 widen ic. and the widened lane “absorbed” (h Haey house. Howaver ,
foundations may still exist beneakb the present Mill Lane. The 1730 Map shows that the Stone Stregt

side of this block had houses at the curbside, the Sourh William sids was not devaloped. Tha 1796
Map indicates the eative block was built up,

1800s :
This location was two lots in the 1800s. No. 59 Stone/ 11 § William Streets and Ne, 61 Stone/ 9 §
William Steeets, ln (812 Asa Ward lived at 59 Stane; and in 1815, No. 59 Stone Steeet was bought
by Gershom Mendes Seixas (1745-1816). the rabbi of Congregarion Sheacith {srael, chisf spokesmzn
far American Jevwry, and Revolutionary pauniat. Rabbi Seizas sold the property 1o Jaceb Levy in
LB15. and in 1835, Levy sold it to meechont Edwin Lord, deanwhile in 1812 Jacob & Thomas
Walden, merchants, were at o, 61 Stoae Street, and in (816 Mo. 61. owned by politician, Matthew
Clarkson, was sold @ physician and drug intporter, Jotham Post Jr. whose farnily sold it o D.
Kirseian in 1830, and Kinsman o merchane Edwin Lord in 1833, Just before the fire, No. 59 Stone
Straar was the home of s2il maker Jolin Cole and Mo, 61 was widow Catherine Allien’s boarding
house. ' :

After the 1835 fite Edwin Lord had vwo through the block buildings buill. In 838 he sold
Mo. 39 Stene 1o imparter Christlag H. Sand, and in 1842 Lord sald Mo, &1 Stone w dry goods

merchant and real estarz agent, Amos R. Eno. By 183! the occupants wert given two addresses with

G. Zollikofier & A. Weuer, impornters. being at 3% Stonef 1 5 William Sceeers; and F. Vietor and T,
Achelis, tmporters, at 61 Stoned 9 5 William. In this same vear, Ralli & Company, cornmission
mierchns. weee also ar L1 S Willian, ageir G Scheldi aod merchant, €. Amann, wers both ar Mo
61 Stene St No. 59 was sold tn 1359 by importer Christian H. Sand to merchants Alexander M. and
Georve B, Lawrence, and the Lawrence business was located ar i1 5 William (rear of 59 Srone} at
least Frott 1873 to 1383, and in this lateer year, agent ). Spencer was alsa at1f 5, William. In 158G
aftar a fire, A. Lawrence commissioned architect Johin B. Snook o create a first stery granite front
to tiie five siory/ bassment butiding here at 39 Stone! i1 5. William (Al 1269-1880). Among
promtinemt 1Mh-century owners of No, &1 Stone/ 9 5, William were from 18532 o 1864 Francis
Vosz. whose firm Vose, Perking & Compony occupied the building, and from [B71 to 1910 the
members of the prestigious real estate. lawyer. political Cuttng family.

L9000

In 191G the Cutting family sold 61 Stone/ 9 § William o the "Reform Club”. Insurance executive
Willtun H. McGee, through his Eieven South Wilkiam Street Company, purchased 39 Stone/ 14 5
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William in 1924 From heirs of the Lawrenee family. and 61 Sione/ 9 § William from the Reform
Club i 1928, MeGee employed archirect William Meil Smith to remodel the 1wo buiidings far
Mclize's marine insurance firm, founded in 1833, [a 1924-35 (Demo 326-1924; Alt 2562-1924]
$muh had two scories added to the five-story 59 Stonef L1 § William. 1n (928-29 {Demao 319-1928:
Al 19721928, he demolished the five-story structiaes 3t 61 Stone/ 9 5 William and replaced i with a
six-und-one-half-stocy building fronwed in limestone.  The building extends spproximately foriy-twe
feet atong Stone Steest, sevenry-six feet along Mill Lane, and foniy-thres fest along South William
Streel.

MoGee's company foreclased o0 the buildings in 1932, and the bank sold it 1o David Knott
in 1944, who sold it 1o Wilco Realey in 1943, who sold it o the WS Wilson Cerp, in 1935, From
196| Leliman Brothars occupied the Beilding (then known as 9 South Williarm) as an annex to s
larger building across Mill Lape at 1-7 5 William Sceest (Sze lot 38). Originating as a mercantile

arade and conunodities firnt before the Civil War. Lelunan Brothers established a base in New Yock
in 1568 and soon shilted to invesument banking,

LPC. Stone Street Histaric Districr Report (LP-1938) (New York: tity of New York, 1994), prepacad
by David M. Breiner -- pages 38-40

Landirarks Presarvation Cammission. Research Files (Stone Street Block/ Lot files, prapared
by David . Breiner, e af)

Stokes. feanagraphy (1915-28), vol. 11, 310-312; 1. 329,

Henory Lane Ena, The Enve Family: New Yook Braneh (1920), 28-30.

“Clarkson, Mauhew.” Wig Was Wire in America. Hist, Vol, (1963), 105,

“Past, lotham, Ir..” Who Was Who in America, Hist. Yol. (1953), 420,

"Seixas, Gershom Mendes,” Who Was Who in America, Hist. Vol. {1963), 473-474.

Ken Auvleua. Greed and Glory on Wall Street: The Fali of the Howse of Lehman (1988).
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LOT 45
Mo, 13 South William Street afk/a 57 Stone Street
Tax Map Block/Lot: 29/45

Built 1903 [Alr 553-1903; nurnerals, 1903, on facada] Architect: C.P.H. Gilbert. 3 storias with
basament, brick/ scone, office building {now bar/ restaurant).

History of the site

1600s

No. 13 South William Su‘ettfﬁ? Stone Steeet was originally pact of the grant given in 1646 to Wessel
Evertsen, a sloop caprain for che Dutch West India Company. This lot contained a large stons(?)
double hoise built prioe to 1660. It faced the curbside of 57 Stone $1.

1700

Evertsen's heirs retained the huus& antil 1726. The {730 Map shows Lhat the Stone Street side of this
block had houses at the curbside, ¢he South William side was not very developed. The lot was sold by
E Elberson to J MeCanney in 1763, The 1796 Map indicates the entire block was built up.

18003 :

In 1312 No 57 Stons was occupied by 2 Mrs. Lenau and a Madame Terrzau, In 1813 the Cruge:
family owned this lot and house; these included merchants Nicholas Cruger and Henry H. Cruger, the
latier possibly was an English Businessnian and Stare Senator, In bath 1519 and 1833 tobacconist and
broker James Bryar bought parts of this 1ot from the Cruzers, 5o by 1834, when the Webster family
lived at 57 Stone 5t, Bryar was the owner,

After the December 1833 fire. Bryar had a store and loft building built here, and 13 §
Wiltiam in 1840 was occupied by Joseph L. Moore & Company, merchants. By 1851 the was a
block-through having 57 Stonef 17 § William a3 its addyess, and its occupants were E & EA Snayder,
and C Engler, both merchants. Also in 1831 thr Bryar family sold the building 1o cigar(?) imporrter
and consuf Bartolome Blanca, whose family kept the building until 1884, Lawyer and Congressman
Jefferson Levy, owned the building in 1884-85; and from 1885 to 1903 the dwners were T. Shortland
Brathers & Company, merchants of lighters (barges for loading freight onto ships).

In 1903 Shortland sold the buliding 1o Amos F. Eno {1836-1915), son of wealthy dry goods merchant

and real esiate developer Amos R. Eno. 1o 1903, in order 1o ransform the building into offices,
capitalist Eno hired the alenied archirget <. P.H. Gilbert, who altered the building comgpletely,

* areating twa new facades, with the South William facadz as the principal emrance. (See atsa Lot 46)

By 1931 the building was gwned by the Olrich Real Estaie Corporation; in 964, by Elmer Dezn.

LPC, Stone Streer Historic Disirict Report (LP-1933) (New Yook Cit}f of New York, 1998), prepared -
by David M. Brainer -- pages 41-42

Landmarks Preservation Commission. Research Files {Stona Steeet Block/ Lot files, prepared
by David M. Breiner, er af)
C.P.H. Gilben, "Amas Ena D.Fﬁ{:e 1903, Eno Collection, Miriam and ira D. Wallach Division of
Aurt, Prinis and Photographs, New York Public Library, Astor, Lenox and Tilden Foundations,
Stokes, [eonography {1915-28), vel. 11, 402403,
Henry Lane Ena, The Eno Family: New York Brancl (1920}, esp. 33-33,
W_illiam P. Eao obiwary, AMYT, Dec. 2, 1945, p. 29,
"Cruser, Henry,” Whe Was Who in dAmerica, Hist. Yal. {1963), t29

John A. Montgomery, Eno — The Man and the Foundation: A Chronicle of Transportotion {1933}
passim.
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LOT 48

Mo, 15 South YWilliam Stleet a'kfa 55 Stoue Sh eet
Tax Map Dlock/Lot: 20/46

P90302 [Al 986-1908] Architect: C.P.H. Gilbert, 4 stariss with basernent, brick/ stons, office
building

Histury of Mie site

L6005

This 1ot was part of the parcel granted in 1646 to sioop capain Wessel Evestsen {d. 1671).

[n 1660 this partion of the homestead conmined at 33 Swne an owr-building of the main Eversen
hous2, and hae stone{?y structure wis at the curbside of Stone Street.

17 -
Evertszu's heirs rewined the groperty unl 1726.The 1730 Map shows that the edtive Stone Stree side
of this bluck had lwouses ac the curbside. the South William side was not developed. The 1796 Map

indivates the entive block was buill up.
1800
In 1812 a Robert Swartwour lived at 35 Stone St In 1817 lot 46 was sold by the Georgs Clack
. family w tobacgoenist Fames Bryar, and his family sull s2am w have owned & in 1851, when thc}r zald
it. v 1834 Carincha D, Tumer, a widow, lived ac 35 Stons,

After the 1833 firg Bryar seams o have had ecected 2 store and loft building. By 1851 this
was o thraush the Block building, since impotting fiem E. Fort & B Lindam were at bath 55 Stone
and 15 S William 5t. The larter address also in this year housed importer Robert Diedrichs - Also in
183§ the Bryar tamily sotd this law ro 1he family of Barolome Blanco, importer and consul; the
Blanco family sold it in 1883 10 attorney aod public speaker Frederic R. Coudert, who kept it-two

years and then sold it o George G Guion, 2 desler in Morocco leather who became a real sstate
investor whose family kept it until 1893,

18005

Capitalist Amos Eno bought this Lot from-Mary Coster in 1904, and Yike Jot 45, in 1908, in order w
eransform the building into offices, capitalist Eno hired the ratentad architeet C P.H. Gilbarr, who
altered the building completety, creating o new facade at Sowth William to go with the facade of No.
13 § Willian both 13 and 13 § William were the Eno Building facade as the principal entrance [All
O86-1908. See also LOT 43]. The Stone 51 side of ihe lorseems to have remainzd as lofts,

mainaining the 18305 facade. In 1921 the Eno family sold the ot to NY Life Insurance and Tous Col
by 1469 lh'ts. was i restaurany bar.

LPC. Srone Street Historic District Reporr (LP-1933) fi‘\’en York: Cuy of New York, 1996), prepared
by David M. Brewer -- pages 42-43

Londmarks Preservation Commission, Research Files (Srane Street Blockf Lex files. prapared
by Dosub M. Breiner, er af

Stokes. feonagraphy (1315-28), val. il. 310
“Couwdzrt, Fraderie Read,” Whe YWas Whe i America, vol 1{1943), 265,
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LOT 47

Mo, 17 South William Street askfa 83 Stoue Strest
Tax dap BlockiLot: 29/47

190305 [AlL 26621905} Architect: Edward L. Tilton. 3 stoties wich basamant, brick! stane, stors,

oftiee. loft building, '

Historr of tha site

This lot was puct of the grant of 1646 o sloop caprain, Wessel Everisen. 1t had no strecre except

perhaps a stone fence at the curbling of beil Slene and 5 William Streels.

| s -

- The 1730 Mup shows thar the entire Stone Street side of this block had houses at the curbside, the
South Williaw side was not deveioped. The 1796 Map indicates the emtire block was buile up.

] 500

T ER12. 53 Stonie 5S¢ was the hamie of tobacconist James Bryar. who latee ownad and redeveloped

other Lot 10 tie diseeiet, [n 1821 D, Geden boualy the foc; in 1826 Jahn Morrison boughe the lot and

ket Wowmil 1832 when be sold it to carpenter Richard F. Carmen {(who aise owned 58 Stone 51 in
1831 The next vear. 1832, Carpenter sold the fot w John &, Pitkin, 2 Manhattan businessman,

Afier the 1835 fire, Pitkin had a block through sioref warchouse buils, which was there by

1838 when lie sold i o merchant David Les {possibly the successful grocery merchant whose swore

wits on Fromg Steeer). In 1839- 18340 the vecupants of [7 5 Willlam were iroposters Harvey & Slagg,

and in 1851 the importing firms of H. Henschen & E. Unkart, and G.Y. Bechtel had Qoor through

oftices at 53 Stone/ 17 § William, The executors of Lee sold the 1ot 1o the Huffer family id 1863,

atwl the Huffers kept it through the turn af the cenury.

19004

[n 1905 the Hufter family sold the lot o Henry S¢haefer, a South Willlam Street merchant who

immediately commissioned architect Edward L. Tilton 1o remodel and teoriem the building [Alt 2652-

1905 work included the replacement of the Sourh William Sireet fronc, and Schaefer had his

business there by 1902, Thete were offices and showrpoms ar 17 § William by [913. The Swone

Street facude is thar from the 1830s, Bchaefer sold the building o Importers & Exporiers [ngurance

Co. in LY18; that Company sald it o Neémo Realty in 1929, and it was acquired by Oscar Richard in

1937, By 1672 it was owned by § William Realty Co. and in 1979 it was an art paliery and offices.

LPC, Stemre Streer Mistoric Discrict Repore {LP-1938) (New York: City of Mew York, 1996), prepared
by David 0. Breiner -- pagas 43-44

Liwlingrks Preservation Gommission. Research Files (Stone Sereel Blocks Lot files, prepared
by David ¥, Breiner. et af)




LOT 48

Ma. 19 South William Street w/lk/a 31 Stoue Strest
Tax Mayp BlockiLot: 28/48

Builr c1836-39 possibly by metchane James Hall. Acchitect unknown, 5§ stories wuh basement, brick,
stare and h:nft building.

History of the sire

1600

This lot was part of the 1546 grant ta sloop capiain Wessel Evensen, however in 1658 Michiel
Pachussen sold a frovse on this lor {51 Stone Street) 1o Aris Do, whe mainmined 2 tavern hete.

Oten’s widow and her second husband sold the propery 0 Gerrit Hendricksen in 1663, [t was ar the
curbside ot Stone Streer,

i 10 ' _

The 17350 Map shows thar the entire Stone Sweet side of this bloek had houses at the curbside, the
South William side was not developed. The 1796 Map indicaras che entice block was built up.

]EUIT\

[n 1512, 51 Stone St was the hame of Josiak Shippany, & nwr-:han-t whase husm:ss was located on
Frumm Street, This could have been the 17th certury oo house. Like lot 47, Jahn Morrison owned it
in 1826, sol it w carpenter, Richard Canmea in 1832, and Carmen o merchant fohn Pitikin in 1833.
In Mlay of 1835 [betore the Fire) the lot was sold by Pitikin to merchant James Hall. The address was
given ag 49-51 Swome 81 and it was called a dwelling.

Hall stiil owned the lot in 1870 when he sold ic to broker James W Murphy, s0 it snust have
peen Hall who bad the Ihr-:rugh-lhc*bluck store and loft building builr 2fter the Decembear 1R3S fire, In
1851 Cameron & Brand. imporeees, and BT, Skinner, publisher, accupied 4% Stone Street (a
misnomer for 310, and this samz 1851 dicactory gave the samg building as also having the address 19
S William St. The Murphy family remained the owners from 1867-1870 uncil they sold ic in 1888
RC Lome, who kept it thraugh the turn of the censury. Lane sobd ir 1o L. Leaman in 1904, and
Leauman in 1905 sold it o real estare investor Amos F. Eng (see Lot 43, No. 13 Scuth Willizm). In
19303, No. 19 South William Strest concined a wholesale wine store ot the first ievet. with four
storizs of offices above. By 1922 the owner was the family of Ene's nephew, attorney/ politician
. Ames R.E. Pinghot. and his Aest wife. sociafite Gentrede Minturn Pinchor. For many years, ating

gstablishments have pecupied Mo, 19 Soudh William Streetf 51 Stone Street. At the foreclosure in

1953, Calumbiz University became the owner, and still was in 1944, Since at least 1966 the getlac,
first and second floors have been a restaurant/ bar.

LEC. Stone Serew Historic Discricy Report (LP-1938) (Naw York: City of New York, 1996), prepared
by David M. Beeiner -- pagas 45-46

Lamlmarks Preservatign Qommission, Research Fites (Suane Sucm Blocks Lot files. prepared
by Duavid M. Breiner, o alf)

Stukes. fronographty (1915-28%, vol, (L, 3E0.

birs. G.A1 Pchet obituary. N¥T. May 17, 1939, p. 25,

Anwe BE. Pinchot obituary, AT, Feb, 19, 1944, p. LA

“Prochisr. &inus Richards Ena,” Wha Was Wiia i Anrerica, vol, 10 (19500, 4235,
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LOT 4%
BLOCK HAaLL

. No. 21-23 South Williarm Street a/k/a 43-47 Stone Street
Tax Map BlockfLat: 29/49

Built- 1927-28 [IvB 280-1927]. Architect: William Meil Smith (Owner Adriaen Block Realty Corp.) 4
L12 stories on So. William Street, 7 stories on Stone Screer: brick, private club.

History of the yite

16003

[t seems that there were three approximately L8 wide lots heez c1800 (Nos. 45,47,49 Swane Street).
in 1660 Ng. 45 Stone was a stane fowse belonging w baker MNicolags de Meyer, I was ar the curbline
of Stone St, and it was on the parcel of land granted ro facob Woiphertsan van Couweanhoven in
1643, No_ 47 Stone 5. which was ¢ garden. and Ne. 49 Swne 5, another kotise, were on fhe parcel
gead 1o sloap caprain, Wessel Evertsen. in 1846, However, at No. 49 Stone Street Michial .
Paulussen buile a dwelling. which was pucchased in 1658 by notary Tielman van Vieck, who along
with Paulussen was soon therealtes among the first permanent settlers of the village of Bergen (now

Jecsey Ciwyy: van Vieck becane Jeesey City's first shediff, Paulussen founded Downtown Jersey City
(Paulus Hook),

The 17350 Map shows thar the enrize Stone Screen side of this block had Nouses af the curbside, the
Sowh William side was not daveloped. The 1796 Map indicares the entire biock was buile ug,

It seems that afier cLB0O, there were only two 1013 here. Lot 49 (47 Stonef 21 S Williarn 5ts) was
boucht by John C. Freeke in 1822, and sold by him after the 1335 fire in 1836 to dry goods merchant
and reat estate investor Edward Kelidge.

It may have been Kellogg who had the 5 story, blogk through left building erected. His
famity owned It uneil 1534. In 1390 No. 21 S Williara/ 47 Stone was occupied by Dswald Jackson,
Jiguors.

Lot 30 {45 Stongd 23 5 William 563}, a¢rass 5 Willism St From (he early synagogue, was
owned by Jewish Famities, i.e. Families Moses, Seixas and Levy, ar least from 1812 1o 1820

It was awned by John Freeke from 1822 to at least 1836: it was probably he who had the
tirough the 5 stary. block theough, toft building heee ecected ¢1336, Brooklyn merchant William S,

Herciman bought it in 1857, and his family sold it in 1896 o New Jc:rse;-,r merchant Wiltiarm A.
Stree

19iR:

1n 1%27 bath buildings were bougle by Adrisen Block Realty Corporation. which was affiliated with
William H. McGQee & Company, Inc., marine underwritsrs, The existing seven-stoty <lieb/ office
huitdiue, originally called Block Hall, was erected in 1927.28. It was 10 keep “some old founrdation
wills” of the twa i%h cemury buildings. Since 1945 it has been a restaueant/ bar with offices above,
Duriag e 19405, the lessee was the Midday Ciub, By [958 the interior of the clubhouse was

teansformed 1o pccommodare the Iralian Alps restaurant and its -::I:'ﬁces The huﬂdmﬂ was vacant at
the time af desigmation.

LPC. Sione Street Historic District Reporr (LP-1938) (Mew York: Cn:}r of Mew York, 1096), prepared
by Duvid M. Breiner -- pages 46-48

Losdmarks Presérvation Commission. Research Files {Stone 5tre|!l Blocks Lot files, prapared
by faavid M. Breiner, & af)

Stokes, fromographry (1915-28}, vol. L, 308-310: vol. V1. 29[,
Kelloae, Edward,” \Who Was Whe in America. Hist. Vol. {(1963), 229
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